UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant \boxtimes

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant $\ \square$

Check the appropriate box:

Preliminary Proxy Statement

□ Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))

☑ Definitive Proxy Statement

Definitive Additional Materials

□ Soliciting Material under §240.14a-12

Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

Not Applicable

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- \boxtimes No fee required.
- □ Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.

(1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:

- (2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
- (3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
- (4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
- (5) Total fee paid:

□ Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

□ Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

(1) Amount Previously Paid:

(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:

(3) Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:



Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. 1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200 Charlottesville, Virginia 22902

April 30, 2018

Dear Fellow Stockholders:

We are pleased to invite you to join us for the Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Thursday, June 14, 2018, at 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, at the Company's offices located at 1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902. Details about the meeting, nominees for election to the Board of Directors and other matters to be acted on at the meeting are presented in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and proxy statement that follow.

It is important that your shares be represented at the meeting, regardless of the number of shares you hold. Accordingly, please exercise your right to vote by completing, signing, dating and returning your proxy card, or by using Internet or telephone voting as described in the accompanying proxy statement, or by following the instructions for voting on the Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials you received for the meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and management of Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc., it is my pleasure to express our appreciation for your support.

Sincerely,

/s/ David G. Kalergis

David G. Kalergis Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Your vote is important. Please exercise your right to vote as soon as possible by completing, signing, dating and returning your proxy card, or by using Internet or telephone voting as described in the accompanying proxy statement. By doing so, you may save us the expense of additional solicitation.

You can help us make a difference by eliminating paper proxy mailings. With your consent, we will provide all future proxy materials electronically. Instructions for consenting to electronic delivery can be found on your proxy card or at <u>www.proxyvote.com</u>. Your consent to receive stockholder materials electronically will remain in effect until canceled.

Diffusio₂n Pharmaceuticals Inc.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON THURSDAY, JUNE 14, 2018

To the Stockholders of Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc.:

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc., a Delaware corporation ("<u>Diffusion</u>", "<u>Company</u>", "<u>we</u>" or "<u>us</u>"), will be held Thursday, June 14, 2018 at 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, at the Company's offices located at 1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902 for the following purposes:

- 1. To elect seven persons to serve as directors until our next annual meeting of stockholders or until their respective successors are elected and qualified.
- 2. To ratify the selection of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2018.
- 3. To approve an amendment to the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the "<u>Charter</u>"), to effect a reverse stock split of the shares of the Company common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, at a ratio of not less than one-to-two and not greater than one-to-fifteen, with the exact ratio and effective time of the reverse stock split to be determined by our Board of Directors, if at all.
- 4. To approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of our named executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2017, as disclosed in the accompanying proxy statement.
- 5. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment of the meeting.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 19, 2018 will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the meeting and any adjournments thereof. A stockholder list will be available at Diffusion's corporate offices beginning ten (10) days prior to the date of the meeting during normal business hours for examination by any stockholder registered on Diffusion's stock ledger as of the record date for any purpose germane to the meeting.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholder Meeting to Be Held on Thursday, June 14, 2018

Our proxy statement and annual report to stockholders, which includes our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, are available at www.proxyvote.com.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ Ben L. Shealy

Ben L. Shealy Senior Vice President – Finance, Treasurer & Secretary

April 30, 2018 Charlottesville, Virginia

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING	1
Why am I receiving these materials?	1
When and Where Will the Annual Meeting Be Held?	1
What are the Purposes of the Annual Meeting?	1
Who is Entitled to Vote at the Annual Meeting?	2
How Do I Vote My Shares?	2
How Will My Shares Be Voted?	2
How Does the Board Recommend that I Vote?	3
How Can I Revoke or Change My Vote?	3
Who is Paying for This Proxy Solicitation?	3
How Many Shares Must Be Present to Hold the Annual Meeting?	3
What Vote is Required for Each Proposal?	4
Who Will Count the Votes?	4
Whom Do I Contact if I Have Questions Regarding the Annual Meeting?	4
Are There Any Matters to be Voted on at the Annual Meeting that are not Included in this Proxy Statement?	4
How Will Business Be Conducted at the Annual Meeting?	4
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	5
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	6
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	7
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	7
Introduction	7
Corporate Governance Guidelines	7
Director Independence	8
Board Leadership Structure	8
Executive Sessions	8
Board Meetings and Attendance	8
Board Committees	8
Audit Committee	9
Compensation Committee	10
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee	11
Science and Technology Committee	13
Board Oversight of Risk	13
Audit Committee Report	14
Policy Regarding Director Attendance at Annual Meetings of Stockholders	14
Process Regarding Stockholder Communications with Board	14
PROPOSAL NO. 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	15
Number of Directors	15
Nominees for Director	15
Information About Current Directors and Board Nominees	15
Additional Information About Current Directors and Board Nominees	16
Board Recommendation	17
PROPOSAL NO. 2 RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	18
Change and Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	18
Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	18
Independent Auditor's Fees	19
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures	19
Board Recommendation	19
PROPOSAL NO. 3 APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO DIFFUSION PHARMACEUTICALS INC.'S CHARTER TO EFFECT THE	20
RESERVE STOCK SPLIT	
General	20

Reasons for the Reverse Stock Split	20
Determination of Ratio	22
Reverse Stock Split Amendment to the Charter	22
Principal Effects of the Reverse Stock Split	22
Effect on Authorized but Unissued Shares	23
Procedure for Effecting Reverse Stock Split and Exchange of Stock Certificates	23
Fractional Shares	24
Risks Associated with the Reverse Stock Split	24
Book-Entry Shares	24
Certificated Shares	24
Principal Effects of Reverse Stock Split on Outstanding Options, Outstanding Convertible Debt, Warrants, and Option Plan	25
Accounting Matters	25
Effect on Par Value	25
No Going Private Transaction	25
Potential Anti-Takeover Effect	25
No Dissenters' Appraisal Rights	26
Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Reverse Stock Split	26
Interests of Directors and Executive Officers	26
Reservation of Right to Abandon Reverse Stock Split	26
Vote Required	27
Board Recommendation	27
	20
PROPOSAL NO. 4 ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	28
Introduction	28 28
Proposed Resolution Board Recommendation	
	28
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	29
Summary Compensation Table	29
Employment Agreements	29
Other Compensatory Arrangements	30
Indemnification Agreements	30
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End	31
oubliniting 24mil 11millio at 1 sear 1 cm 2mil	01
OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END	31
401(k) Retirement Plan	31
Post-Termination Severance and Change in Control Arrangements	32
5 5	
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	33
Overview of Director Compensation Program	33
Cash Compensation	33
Long-Term Equity-Based Incentive Compensation	33
Blech Option Agreement	34
Indemnification Agreements	34
Summary Director Compensation Table for Fiscal 2017	34
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS	35
OTHER MATTERS	35
Stockholder Proposals for 2019 Annual Meeting and Director Nominations	35
Annual Report	35
Householding of Annual Meeting Materials	35
Cost and Method of Solicitation	35

As used in this proxy statement, references to "Diffusion," the "Company," "we," "us," "our" and similar references refer to Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. and our consolidated subsidiaries, the term "common stock" refers to our common stock, par value \$0.001 per share.

ii



1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200 Charlottesville, Virginia 22902

PROXY STATEMENT FOR ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON THURSDAY, JUNE 14, 2018

The Board of Directors (the "<u>Board</u>") of Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("<u>Diffusion</u>", the "<u>Company</u>", "<u>we</u>" or "<u>us</u>") is using this proxy statement to solicit your proxy for use at the Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, on Thursday, June 14, 2018 (the "<u>Annual Meeting</u>"). The Board expects to make available electronically or to send to our stockholders the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, this proxy statement and a form of proxy on or about April 30, 2018.

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

Why am I receiving these materials?

We have sent you this proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card because the Board is soliciting your proxy to vote at the Annual Meeting. You are invited to attend the Annual Meeting to vote on the proposals described in this proxy statement. However, you do not need to attend the meeting to vote your shares. Instead, you may simply complete, sign and return the enclosed proxy card, or follow the instructions below to submit your proxy over the telephone or on the Internet.

When and Where Will the Annual Meeting Be Held?

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. will be held on Thursday, June 14, 2018, at 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, at the Company's offices located at 1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200 Charlottesville, Virginia 22902.

What are the Purposes of the Annual Meeting?

The purposes of the Annual Meeting are to vote on the following items:

- 1. To elect seven persons to serve as directors until our next annual meeting of stockholders or until their respective successors are elected and qualified.
- 2. To ratify the selection of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2018.
- 3. To approve an amendment to the Company's Charter, to effect a reverse stock split of the shares of the Company common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, at a ratio of not less than one-to-two and not greater than one-to-fifteen, with the exact ratio and effective time of the reverse stock split to be determined by our Board, if at all.
- 4. To approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of our named executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2017, as disclosed in the accompanying proxy statement.

5. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment of the meeting.

Who is Entitled to Vote at the Annual Meeting?

Stockholders of record at the close of business on April 19, 2018 (the "<u>Record Date</u>") will be entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting or any adjournment of the Annual Meeting. As of the Record Date, there were 50,526,547 shares of our common stock outstanding. Each share of our common stock is entitled to one vote on each matter to be voted on at the Annual Meeting.

How Do I Vote My Shares?

Your vote is important. Whether you hold shares directly as a stockholder of record or beneficially in "street name" (through a broker, bank or other nominee), you may vote your shares without attending the Annual Meeting. You may vote by granting a proxy or, for shares held in street name, by submitting voting instructions to your broker or nominee.

If you are a stockholder whose shares are registered in your name, you may vote your shares in person at the meeting or by one of the three following methods:

- Vote by Internet, by going to the web address http://www.proxyvote.com and following the instructions for Internet voting shown on your proxy card.
- Vote by Telephone, by dialing 1-800-690-6903 and following the instructions for telephone voting shown on your proxy card.
- Vote by Proxy Card, by completing, signing, dating and mailing the enclosed proxy card in the envelope provided. If you vote by Internet or telephone, please do not mail your proxy card.

If your shares are held in street name, you may receive a separate voting instruction form or you may need to contact your broker, bank or other nominee to determine whether you will be able to vote electronically using the Internet or telephone.

The deadline for voting by telephone or by using the Internet is 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on Wednesday, June 13, 2018. Please see your proxy card or the information your bank, broker or other holder of record provided to you for more information on your options for voting.

How Will My Shares Be Voted?

If you return your signed proxy card or use Internet or telephone voting before the Annual Meeting, the named proxies will vote your shares as you direct.

For Proposal No. 1—Election of Directors, you may:

- Vote **FOR** all seven of the nominees for director;
- WITHHOLD your vote from all seven of the nominees for director; or
- WITHHOLD your vote from one or more of the seven nominees for director that you designate.

For Proposal No. 2—Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Proposal No. 3— Approval of an Amendment to Diffusion's Charter, to Effect the Reverse Stock Split and Proposal No. 4 – Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation:

- Vote **FOR** the proposal;
- Vote AGAINST the proposal; or
- **ABSTAIN** from voting on the proposal.

If you send in your proxy card or use Internet or telephone voting, but you do not specify how you want to vote your shares, the proxies will vote your shares:

- FOR all seven of the nominees for director in Proposal No. 1— Election of Directors;
- FOR Proposal No. 2—Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm;
- FOR Proposal No. 3—Approval of an Amendment to Diffusion's Charter, to Effect the Reverse Stock Split; and
- FOR Proposal No. 4—Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation.

How Does the Board Recommend that I Vote?

The Board recommends that you vote:

- FOR all seven of the nominees for director in Proposal No. 1—Election of Directors;
- FOR Proposal No. 2—Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm;
- FOR Proposal No. 3—Approval of an Amendment to Diffusion's Charter, to Effect the Reverse Stock Split; and
- FOR Proposal No. 4—Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation.

How Can I Revoke or Change My Vote?

If you are a stockholder whose shares are registered in your name, you may revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted by one of the following methods:

- Submitting another proper proxy with a more recent date than that of the proxy first given by following the Internet or telephone voting instructions or completing, signing, dating and returning a proxy card to us;
- Sending written notice of revocation to our Corporate Secretary; or
- Attending the Annual Meeting and voting by ballot.

If you hold your shares through a broker, bank or other nominee, you may revoke your proxy by following instructions your broker, bank or other nominee provides.

Who is Paying for This Proxy Solicitation?

We will pay for the entire cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to these proxy materials, our directors and employees may also solicit proxies in person, by telephone or by other means of communication. Directors and employees will not be paid any additional compensation for soliciting proxies. We may also reimburse brokerage firms, banks and other agents for the reasonable cost of forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners.

How Many Shares Must Be Present to Hold the Annual Meeting?

The presence at the Annual Meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority (25,263,274 shares) of the outstanding shares of our common stock as of the Record Date will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at the Annual Meeting. In general, shares of our common stock represented by a properly signed and returned proxy card will be counted as shares present and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting for purposes of determining a quorum. Shares represented by proxies marked "Abstain" and "broker non-votes" are counted in determining whether a quorum is present. A "broker non-vote" is a proxy returned by a broker on behalf of its beneficial owner customer that is not voted on a particular matter because voting instructions have not been received by the broker from the customer, and the broker does not have discretionary authority to vote on behalf of such customer on such matter. If there is not a quorum, a majority of the shares of our common stock present at the Annual Meeting may adjourn the Annual Meeting to a later date.

What Vote is Required for Each Proposal?

Assuming a quorum is represented at the Annual Meeting, either in person or by proxy, the following table summarizes the vote threshold required for approval of each proposal and the effect on the outcome of the vote of abstentions and uninstructed shares by brokers (referred to as broker non-votes).

Proposal Number	Item	Vote Required for Approval	Effect of Abstentions	Effect of Broker Non-Vote
1	Election of Directors	Plurality of the votes cast	No effect	Not voted/No effect
2	Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	Majority of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote	Counted "against"	Shares may be voted by brokers in their discretion, but any non-votes have no effect
3	Approval of an Amendment to Diffusion's Charter, to Effect the Reverse Stock Split	Majority of shares outstanding and entitled to vote	Counted "against"	Counted "against"
4	Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation	Majority of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote	Counted "against"	Not voted/No effect

Who Will Count the Votes?

We currently expect that Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. will tabulate the votes and our Corporate Secretary will be our inspector of elections for the Annual Meeting.

Whom Do I Contact if I Have Questions Regarding the Annual Meeting?

If you have questions about the Annual Meeting or would like additional copies of this Proxy Statement, you should contact our Senior Vice President – Finance, Treasurer & Secretary, Ben L. Shealy, at 1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902.

Are There Any Matters to be Voted on at the Annual Meeting that are not Included in this Proxy Statement?

We currently are not aware of any business to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting other than that described in this proxy statement. If, however, other matters properly are brought before the Annual Meeting, or any adjournment or postponement of the Annual Meeting, your proxy includes discretionary authority on the part of the individuals appointed to vote your shares or act on those matters according to their best judgment, including to adjourn the Annual Meeting if a quorum is not present.

How Will Business Be Conducted at the Annual Meeting?

The presiding officer at the Annual Meeting will determine how business at the meeting will be conducted. Only nominations and other proposals brought before the Annual Meeting in accordance with the advance notice and information requirements of our Amended and Restated Bylaws will be considered, and no such nominations or other proposals were received. In order for a stockholder proposal to have been included in our proxy statement for the Annual Meeting, our Corporate Secretary must have received such proposal a reasonable period of time before we began to print and send our proxy materials. Under our Amended and Restated Bylaws, complete and timely written notice of a proposed nominee for election to the Board at the Annual Meeting or a proposal for any other business to be brought before the Annual Meeting must have been received by our Corporate Secretary not later than February 11, 2018, and must have contained the specific information required by our Amended and Restated Bylaws, in order to be included in this proxy statement.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This proxy statement contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and are subject to the safe harbor created by those sections. We have identified some of these forward-looking statements with words like "believe," "may," "could," "would," "might," "possible," "potential," "will," "should," "expect," "intend," "plan," "predict," "anticipate," "estimate" and "continue", the negative of these words, other words and terms of similar meaning and the use of future dates. Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties. These uncertainties include factors that affect all businesses as well as matters specific to us. Forward-looking statements by their nature address matters that are, to differing degrees, uncertain. Uncertainties and risks may cause our actual results to be materially different than those expressed in or implied by our forward-looking statements. For us, particular uncertainties and risks include, among others, our history of operating losses and negative cash flow, uncertainties regarding clinical testing, the difficulty of developing pharmaceutical products, obtaining regulatory and other approvals and achieving market acceptance and other risks and uncertainties described in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "<u>SEC</u>"), including our most recent annual report on Form 10-K. All forward-looking statements in this proxy statement speak only as of the date of this proxy statement and are based on our current beliefs and expectations. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as otherwise required by law.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Based on information available to us and filings with the SEC, the following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership (as defined by Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of our outstanding common stock as of the Record Date for (i) each of our current directors and nominees; (ii) each of our current named executive officers (as defined in Item 402(a)(3) of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act); and (iii) all of our current directors and executive officers as a group. As of the Record Date, no beneficial owner owned 5% or more of the shares of common stock then outstanding.

Beneficial ownership and percentage ownership are determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and include voting or investment power with respect to shares of stock. This information does not necessarily indicate beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Under these rules, shares of common stock issuable under stock options, the preferred stock, our convertible debt instruments or warrants that are exercisable or convertible within 60 days of the Record Date are deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the beneficial ownership percentage of the holder thereof, but are not deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of any other person. Ownership is based upon information provided by each respective director and officer, Forms 4, Schedules 13D and 13G and other public documents filed with the SEC for some of the stockholders, which information may not be accurate as of the Record Date.

Unless otherwise indicated and subject to applicable community property laws, to our knowledge, each stockholder named in the following table possesses sole voting and investment power over their shares of common stock, except for those jointly owned with that person's spouse. Unless otherwise indicated below, the address of each person listed on the table is c/o Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. 1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Number(1)	Percentage of total Voting Power(2)
Current Directors		
David G. Kalergis (3)	391,660	*
John L. Gainer, Ph.D. (4)	570,889	1.1%
Mark T. Giles (5)	938,973	1.9%
Alan Levin (6)	128,772	*
Robert Adams (7)	194,592	*
Isaac Blech (8)	248,853	*
Robert R. Ruffolo (9)	10,417	*
Executive Officers		
Ben L. Shealy (9)	128,673	*
Thomas Byrne (10)	295,935	*
All current directors and executive officers as a group (nine persons) (11)	2,908,764	5.8%

Indicates less than 1%.

- (1) Represents shares of common stock held as of the Record Date plus shares of common stock that may be acquired upon exercise of options, warrants and other rights exercisable within sixty (60) days of the Record Date.
- (2) Based on shares of common stock that were issued and outstanding as of the Record Date. The percentage ownership and voting power for each person (or all directors and executive officers as a group) is calculated by assuming (i) the exercise or conversion of all options, warrants and convertible securities exercisable or convertible within sixty (60) days of the Record Date held by such person and (ii) the non-exercise and non-conversion of all outstanding warrants, options and convertible securities held by all other persons (including our other directors and executive officers).
- (3) Consists of (a) 68,670 shares held directly by Mr. Kalergis directly, (b) 7,388 shares held by Mr. Kalergis' wife, (c) 38,252 shares held jointly with Mr. Kalergis' wife and (d) 277,350 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
- (4) Consists of (a) 372,572 shares held by the John L. Gainer Declaration of Trust dated February 19, 2008 and (b) 198,317 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date. Dr. Gainer is a trustee of the revocable trust, and, as such, may be deemed to share beneficial ownership of such shares. Dr. Gainer expressly disclaims beneficial ownership of any such shares except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.

- (5) Consists of (a) 4,407 shares held for the benefit of Mr. Giles in his individual retirement account, (b) 802,689 shares held by MTG Investment Holdings, LLC and (c) 131,877 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date. Mr. Giles is the sole member of MTG Investment Holdings, LLC and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of such securities. Mr. Giles disclaims beneficial ownership of such securities except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.
- (6) Consists of (a) 23,782 shares held by Mr. Levin directly, (b) 1,022 restricted shares held by Mr. Levin directly and (c) 103,968 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
- (7) Consists of (a) 25,587 shares held directly by Mr. Adams directly, (b) 9,464 shares held jointly with Mr. Adams' wife, (c) 18,898 shares held for the benefit of Mr. Adams in his 401(k) retirement account and (d) 140,643 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
- (8) Consists of (a) 28,334 shares held directly by Mr. Blech directly, (b) 11,905 shares held jointly with Mr. Blech's wife, (c) 154,763 shares held for the benefit of Mr. Blech in trusts and (d) 53,851 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
- (9) Consists of shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
- (10) Consists of (a) 139,187 shares held by Mr. Byrne directly and (b) 156,748 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
- (11) Includes 1,201,844 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our directors and executive officers and all persons who beneficially own more than 10 percent of the outstanding shares of our common stock to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our common stock. Directors, executive officers and greater than 10 percent beneficial owners also are required to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

To our knowledge, based on a review of the copies of such reports and amendments to such reports furnished to us with respect to the year ended December 31, 2017, and based on written representations by our directors and executive officers, all required Section 16 reports under the Exchange Act, for our directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of greater than 10 percent of our common stock were filed on a timely basis during the year ended December 31, 2017, except for the following:

• Robert R. Ruffolo filed a Form 3 and a Form 4 on July 13, 2017 for transactions that occurred on June 29, 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Introduction

Our common stock is currently listed for quotation on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol "DFFN." As required by the Listing Rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market, the Board has adopted certain governance standards, including its standard of independence.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

Our Board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines, a copy of which can be found on the Investor Relations—Corporate Governance section of our corporate website at <u>www.diffusionpharma.com</u>. Among the topics addressed in our Corporate Governance Guidelines are:

- Board size, composition and qualifications;
- Selection of directors;
- Board leadership;
- Board committees;
- Board and committee meetings;
- Executive sessions of outside directors;

- Retirement and resignation policy;
- Board compensation;
- Loans to directors and executive officers;
- Chief Executive Officer evaluation;
- Board and committee evaluations;
- Director continuing education;

- Meeting attendance by directors and non-directors;
- Appropriate information and access;
- Ability to retain advisors;
- Conflicts of interest and director independence;
- Board interaction with corporate constituencies;
- Stock ownership by directors and executive officers;
- Retirement and term limits;

- Succession planning;
- Related person transactions;
- •Communication with directors
- Director attendance at annual meetings of stockholders; and
- Change of principal occupation and board memberships.

Director Independence

The Board has determined that five of our seven current directors — Isaac Blech, Robert Adams, Mark T. Giles, Alan Levin and Robert R. Ruffolo — are "independent directors" under the Listing Rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market. The Listing Rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market provide a non-exclusive list of persons who are not considered independent. For example, under these rules, a director who is, or during the past three (3) years was, employed by Diffusion or by any parent or subsidiary of Diffusion, other than prior employment as an interim chairman or Chief Executive Officer, would not be considered independent. No director qualifies as independent unless the Board affirmatively determines that the director does not have a material relationship with the listed company that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment. In making an affirmative determination that a director is an "independent director," the Board reviewed and discussed information provided by these individuals and by us with regard to each of their business and personal activities as they may relate to us and our management. Mr. Kalergis and Dr. Gainer are not considered independent due to their executive officer positions with the Company.

Board Leadership Structure

The Board believes that our stockholders are best served if the Board retains the flexibility to adapt its leadership structure to applicable facts and circumstances, which necessarily change over time. Accordingly, under our Corporate Governance Guidelines, the office of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer may or may not be held by one person. The Board believes it is best not to have a fixed policy on this issue and that it should be free to make this determination based on what it believes is best under the circumstances.

Currently, David G. Kalergis serves as both the Chairman of the Board and as our Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes that it is currently in the best interests of the Company's stockholders to combine these offices as it promotes information flow between management and the Board, effective decision making and an alignment of corporate strategy. However, the Board strongly endorses the concept of an independent director being in a position of leadership for the rest of the outside directors. Under our Corporate Governance Guidelines, if at any time the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board positions are held by the same person, the Board, upon recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, will elect an independent director as a lead independent director. Mark T. Giles currently serves as our lead independent director. In addition, Isaac Blech, also an independent director, serves as the Vice Chairman of the Board.

Executive Sessions

At each regular meeting of the Board, our independent directors meet in executive session with no company management present during a portion of the meeting. Mr. Giles, as our lead independent director, presides over these executive sessions and serves as a liaison between the independent directors and our Chief Executive Officer.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board held 10 meetings during 2017. All of the directors on the Board during 2017 attended 75 percent or more of the aggregate meetings of the Board and all committees on which they served during 2017. All Board members as of the date of the 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders attended the 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Board Committees

The Board has four committees: Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and Science and Technology Committee. Each of these committees has the composition and responsibilities described below. The Board, from time to time, may establish other committees to facilitate the management of our Company and may change the composition and the responsibilities of our existing committees. Each of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has a charter which can be found on the Investor Relations—Corporate Governance section of our corporate website at <u>www.diffusionpharma.com</u>. Messrs. Adams, Giles and Levin currently serve as the members of each of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Adams is the chairman of the Compensation Committee, Mr. Giles is the chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and Mr. Levin is the chairman of the Audit Committee. Messrs. Ruffolo, Adams and Gainer currently serve as the members of the Science and Technology Committee.

Responsibilities. The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

- overseeing our accounting and financial reporting processes, systems of internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures on behalf of the Board and reporting the results or findings of its oversight activities to the Board;
- having sole authority to appoint, retain and oversee the work of our independent registered public accounting firm and establishing the compensation to be paid to the independent registered public accounting firm;
- establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls and/or or auditing matters and for the confidential, anonymous submission by our employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters;
- reviewing and pre-approving all audit services and permissible non-audit services to be performed for us by our independent registered public accounting firm as provided under the federal securities laws and rules and regulations of the SEC; and
- overseeing our system to monitor and manage risk, and legal and ethical compliance programs, including the establishment and administration (including the grant of any waiver from) a written code of ethics applicable to each of our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions.

The Audit Committee has the authority to engage the services of outside experts and advisors as it deems necessary or appropriate to carry out its duties and responsibilities.

Composition and Audit Committee Financial Expert. The current members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Adams, Giles and Levin. Mr. Levin is the chair of the Audit Committee.

Each current member of the Audit Committee qualifies as "independent" for purposes of membership on audit committees under the Listing Rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market and the rules and regulations of the SEC and is "financially literate" under the Listing Rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market. In addition, the Board has determined that Mr. Levin qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert" as defined by the rules and regulations of the SEC and meets the qualifications of "financial sophistication" under the Listing Rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market as a result of his experience in senior financial positions. Stockholders should understand that these designations related to the Audit Committee members' experience and understanding with respect to certain accounting and auditing matters are disclosure requirements of the SEC and The NASDAQ Capital Market and do not impose upon any of them any duties, obligations or liabilities that are greater than those generally imposed on a member of the Audit Committee or of the Board.

Meetings. The Audit Committee met 8 times during 2017.

Processes and Procedures for Complaints. The Audit Committee has established procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by us regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters, and the submission by our employees, on a confidential and anonymous basis, of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters. Our personnel with such concerns are encouraged to discuss their concerns with their supervisor first, who in turn will be responsible for informing our chief Executive Officer of any concerns raised. If an employee prefers not to discuss a particular matter with his or her own supervisor, the employee may instead discuss such matter with our Chief Executive Officer. If an individual prefers not to discuss a matter with the Chief Executive Officer or if the Chief Executive Officer is unavailable and the matter is urgent, the individual is encouraged to contact the Chair of the Audit Committee, Mr. Levin.



Compensation Committee

Responsibilities. The primary responsibilities of the Compensation Committee include:

- determining the annual salaries, incentive compensation, long-term incentive compensation, special or supplemental benefits or perquisites and any and all other compensation applicable to our Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers;
- determining any revisions to corporate goals and objectives with respect to compensation for our Chief Executive Officer and other executive
 officers and establishing and leading a process for the full Board to evaluate the performance of our Chief Executive Officer and other executive
 officers in light of those goals and objectives;
- administering our equity-based compensation plans, including determining specific grants of options and other awards for executive officers and other employees under our equity-based compensation plans;
- reviewing and discussing with our Chief Executive Officer and reporting periodically to the Board plans for executive officer development and corporate succession plans for the Chief Executive Officer and other key executive officers and employees; and
- establishing and leading a process for determination of the compensation applicable to the non-employee directors on the Board.

The Compensation Committee has the authority to engage the services of outside experts and advisors as it deems necessary or appropriate to carry out its duties and responsibilities.

Composition. The current members of the Compensation Committee are Messrs. Adams, Giles and Levin. Mr. Adams is the chair of the Compensation Committee. Each of the three current members of the Compensation Committee is an "independent director" under the Listing Rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market and a "non-employee director" within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act.

Meetings. The Compensation Committee met 8 times during 2017.

Processes and Procedures for Consideration and Determination of Executive Compensation. As mentioned above, the Compensation Committee has authority to determine all compensation applicable to our executive officers. In setting executive compensation for our executive officers, the Compensation Committee considers, among other things, the following primary factors: each executive's position within the Company and the level of responsibility; the ability of the executive to affect key business initiatives; the executive's individual experience and qualifications; compensation paid to executives of comparable positions by companies similar to our Company; Company and individual performance; the executive's current and historical compensation levels; recommendations of our Chief Executive Officer and input from the Compensation Committee's independent consulting firm, Radford.

In making decisions regarding the form and amount of compensation to be paid to our executive officers (other than our Chief Executive Officer), the Compensation Committee considers and gives weight to the recommendations of our Chief Executive Officer recognizing that, due to his reporting and otherwise close relationship with each executive, the Chief Executive Officer often is in a better position than the Compensation Committee to evaluate the performance of each executive (other than himself). In making decisions regarding the form and amount of compensation to be paid to our Chief Executive Officer, the Compensation Committee considers the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer with respect to his own compensation and the Compensation Committee's own assessment of the Chief Executive Officer's annual performance and input from other Board members. The Compensation Committee meets in executive session regularly and makes all executive compensation decisions without the presence of the Chief Executive Officer or any executive or employee of our company.

The Compensation Committee has retained the services of Radford to provide advice with respect to executive compensation. Radford was engaged directly by the Compensation Committee in 2016 and 2017 and did not advise our management and only worked with management with the express permission of the Compensation Committee. Radford did not provide any services to our company in 2016 or 2017 other than those for which it was retained by the Compensation Committee, other than consulting with members of management regarding salaries for certain potential non-executive officer employee hires. Radford's engagement by the Compensation Committee includes reviewing and advising on all significant aspects of executive compensation. This includes base salaries, short-term cash incentives and long-term equity incentives for our executives, and cash compensation and long-term equity incentives for our non-employee directors. In so doing, at the request of the Compensation Committee to compare elements of our executive compensation program to those of our peers and made other recommendations to the Compensation Committee regarding certain aspects of our executive compensation program. In making decisions regarding the form and amount of compensation to be paid to our executives, the Compensation Committee considers the information gathered by, and the recommendations of, Radford.



Processes and Procedures for Consideration and Determination of Director Compensation. The Board has delegated to the Compensation Committee the responsibility, among other things, to establish and lead a process for determination of compensation payable to our non-employee directors. The Compensation Committee makes recommendations regarding compensation payable to our non-employee directors to the entire Board, which then makes the final decisions.

In making decisions regarding compensation to be paid to our non-employee directors, the Board considers the recommendations of Radford, but also other factors, such as its own views as to the form and amount of compensation to be paid, the current and anticipated time demands placed on non-employee directors and other factors that may be relevant.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Responsibilities. The primary responsibilities of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are:

- identifying individuals qualified to become Board members;
- recommending director nominees for each annual meeting of our stockholders and director nominees to fill any vacancies that may occur between meetings of stockholders;
- being aware of best practices in corporate governance and developing and recommending to the Board a set of corporate governance standards to govern the Board, its committees, our company and our employees in the conduct of our business and affairs; and
- developing and overseeing a Board and Board committee evaluation process.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has the authority to engage the services of outside experts and advisors as it deems necessary or appropriate to carry out its duties and responsibilities.

Composition. The current members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are Messrs. Adams, Giles and Levin. Mr. Giles is the chair of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Each of the three current members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is an "independent director" within the meaning of the Listing Rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market.

Meetings. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met 4 times during 2017.

Director Nominations Process

In selecting nominees for the Board, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee first determines whether the incumbent directors are qualified to serve, and wish to continue to serve, on the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that our Company and stockholders benefit from the continued service of qualified incumbent directors because those directors have familiarity with and insight into our Company's affairs that they have accumulated during their tenure with Diffusion. Appropriate continuity of Board membership also contributes to the Board's ability to work as a collective body. Accordingly, it is the practice of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, in general, to re-nominate an incumbent director at the upcoming annual meeting of stockholders if the director wishes to continue his or her service with the Board, the director continues to satisfy the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes the director continues to make important contributions to the Board and there are no special, countervailing considerations against re-nomination of the director.

In identifying and evaluating new candidates for election to the Board, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee intends to first solicit recommendations for nominees from persons whom the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes are likely to be familiar qualified candidates having the qualifications, skills and characteristics required for Board nominees from time to time. Such persons may include members of the Board and senior management of Diffusion. In addition, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may engage a search firm to assist it in identifying qualified candidates. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee then intends to review and evaluate each candidate whom it believes merits serious consideration, taking into account available information concerning the candidate, any qualifications or criteria for Board membership established by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may solicit the views of our management, other Board members and any other individuals it believes may have insight into a candidate. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may solicit the views of our management, other Board members and any other individuals it believes may have insight into a candidate. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may solicit the views of our management or more of its members and/or other Board members to interview any proposed candidate.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider recommendations for the nomination of directors submitted by our stockholders. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will evaluate candidates recommended by stockholders in the same manner as those recommended as stated above.

There are no formal requirements or minimum qualifications that a candidate must meet in order for the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to recommend the candidate to the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that each nominee should be evaluated based on his or her merits as an individual, taking into account the needs of the Company and the Board. However, in evaluating candidates, there are a number of criteria that the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee generally views as relevant and is likely to consider. Some of these factors include:

- whether the candidate is an "independent director" under applicable independence tests under the federal securities laws and rules and regulations of the SEC;
- whether the candidate is "financially sophisticated" and otherwise meets the requirements for serving as a member of an audit committee;
- whether the candidate is an "audit committee financial expert" under the rules and regulations of the SEC;
- the needs of the Company with respect to the particular talents and experience of our directors;
- the personal and professional integrity and reputation of the candidate;
- the candidate's level of education and business experience;
- the candidate's business acumen;
- the candidate's level of understanding of our business and industry and other industries relevant to our business;
- the candidate's ability and willingness to devote adequate time to the work of the Board and its committees;
- the fit of the candidate's skills and personality with those of other directors and potential directors in building a board of directors that is effective, collegial and responsive to the needs of our company;
- whether the candidate possesses strategic thinking and a willingness to share ideas;
- the candidate's diversity of experiences, expertise and background; and
- the candidate's ability to represent the interests of all stockholders and not a particular interest group.

While we do not have a stand-alone diversity policy, in considering whether to recommend any director nominee, including candidates recommended by stockholders, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider the factors above, including the candidate's diversity of experiences, expertise and background. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not assign specific weights to particular criteria and no particular criterion is necessarily applicable to all prospective nominees. We believe that the backgrounds and qualifications of the directors, considered as a group, should provide a significant mix of experience, knowledge and abilities that will allow the Board to fulfill its responsibilities.

Science and Technology Committee

Responsibilities. The primary responsibilities of the Science and Technology Committee include:

- to assist the Board in its oversight of matters relating to the Company's strategic direction and investment in research and development and technology ("R&D");
- to review, evaluate and advise the Board regarding the Company's progress in achieving its strategic R&D goals and objectives;
- to advise the Board on certain potential clinical indications in order to sustain the longer term development of the Company; and
- to advise the Board, as deemed necessary, in the following areas: the status of the Company's clinical trial(s) and clinical matters generally; the Company's Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") relations and FDA-related matters; the quality, direction and competitiveness of the Company's R&D efforts; the status of the Company's intellectual property portfolio and its bearing on the Company's patent strategy and execution; the Company's business development and licensing strategy and efforts.

Composition. The current members of the Science and Technology Committee are Messrs. Ruffolo, Adams and Gainer. Mr. Ruffolo is the chair of the Science and Technology Committee.

Meetings. As the Science and Technology Committee was formed in 2018, it did not hold any meetings during 2017.

The Science and Technology Committee has the authority to obtain advice and assistance from consultants to advise it and has access to members of management. While the Science and Technology Committee has responsibilities and powers, including those set forth above, it is not the duty of the Science and Technology Committee to develop, design or implement the Company's R&D program.

Board Oversight of Risk

The Board as a whole has responsibility for risk oversight, with more in-depth reviews of certain areas of risk being conducted by the relevant Board committees that report on their deliberations to the full Board. The oversight responsibility of the Board and its committees is enabled by management reporting processes that are designed to provide information to the Board about the identification, assessment and management of critical risks and management's risk mitigation strategies. The areas of risk that we focus on include regulatory, operational, financial (accounting, credit, liquidity and tax), legal, compensation, competitive, health, safety and environment, economic, political and reputational risks.

The committees of the Board oversee risks associated with their respective principal areas of focus. The Audit Committee's role includes a particular focus on the qualitative aspects of financial reporting to stockholders, on our processes for the management of business and financial risk, our financial reporting obligations and for compliance with significant applicable legal, ethical and regulatory requirements. The Audit Committee, along with management, is also responsible for developing and participating in a process for review of important financial and operating topics that present potential significant risk to our company. The Compensation Committee is responsible for overseeing risks and exposures associated with our compensation programs and arrangements, including our executive and director compensation programs and arrangements, and management of succession planning. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee oversees risks relating to our corporate governance matters and policies and director succession planning.

We recognize that a fundamental part of risk management is understanding not only the risks a company faces and what steps management is taking to manage those risks, but also understanding what level of risk is appropriate for our Company. The involvement of the full Board in setting our business strategy is a key part of the Board's assessment of management's appetite for risk and also a determination of what constitutes an appropriate level of risk for our company.

We believe our current Board leadership structure is appropriate and helps ensure proper risk oversight for our company for a number of reasons, including: (1) general risk oversight by the full Board in connection with its role in reviewing our key long-term and short-term business strategies and monitoring on an on-going basis the implementation of our key business strategies; (2) more detailed oversight by our Board committees that are currently comprised of and chaired by our independent directors and (3) the focus of our Chairman of the Board on allocating appropriate Board agenda time for discussion regarding the implementation of our key business strategies and specifically risk management.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applies to all of our directors, executive officers and other employees, and meets the requirements of the SEC. A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics will be available on the Investor Relations—Corporate Governance—Code of Business Conduct and Ethics section of our corporate website at <u>www.diffusionpharma.com</u>.

Audit Committee Report

This report is furnished by the Audit Committee of the Board with respect to our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

One of the purposes of the Audit Committee is to oversee our accounting and financial reporting processes and the audit of our annual financial statements. Our management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of complete and accurate financial statements. Our independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for performing an independent audit of our financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and for issuing a report on their audit.

In performing its oversight role, the Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed our audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 with our management. Management represented to the Audit Committee that our financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Audit Committee has discussed with KPMG, our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ended December 31, 2017, the matters required to be discussed under Public Company Accounting Oversight Board standards. The Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from our independent registered public accounting firm required by the applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding communications with audit committees concerning independence. The Audit Committee has discussed with KPMG its independence and concluded that the independent registered public accounting firm is independent from our company and our management.

Based on the review and discussions of the Audit Committee described above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that our audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 be included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Audit Committee Alan Levin, Chair Robert Adams Mark T. Giles

Policy Regarding Director Attendance at Annual Meetings of Stockholders

It is the policy of the Board that directors standing for re-election should attend our annual meeting of stockholders, if their schedules permit.

Process Regarding Stockholder Communications with Board

Stockholders may communicate with the Board or any one particular director by sending correspondence, addressed to our Corporate Secretary, Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc., 1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902, with an instruction to forward the communication to the Board or one or more particular directors. Our Corporate Secretary will forward promptly all such stockholder communications to the Board or the one or more particular directors, with the exception of any advertisements, solicitations for periodical or other subscriptions and other similar communications.

PROPOSAL NO. 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Number of Directors

Our Amended and Restated Bylaws provide that the Board will consist of at least one member, or such other number as may be determined by the Board or our stockholders. The Board has fixed the number of directors at seven.

Nominees for Director

The Board has nominated the following seven individuals to serve as our directors until the next annual meeting of our stockholders or until their successors are elected and qualified. All of the nominees named below are current members of the Board.

- David G. Kalergis
- Isaac Blech
- John L. Gainer, Ph.D.
- Robert Adams
- Mark T. Giles
- Alan Levin
- Robert R. Ruffolo

Proxies only can be voted for the number of persons named as nominees in this proxy statement, which is seven.

If prior to the Annual Meeting, the Board should learn that any nominee will be unable to serve for any reason, the proxies that otherwise would have been voted for this nominee will be voted for a substitute nominee as selected by the Board. Alternatively, the proxies, at the discretion of the Board, may be voted for that fewer number of nominees as results from the inability of any nominee to serve. The Board has no reason to believe that any of the nominees will be unable to serve.

Information About Current Directors and Board Nominees

The table below sets forth, as of the Record Date, certain information that has been furnished to us by each current director and each individual who has been nominated by the Board to serve as a director of our company.

Name	Age	Director Since
David G. Kalergis	69	2016
Isaac Blech	68	2016
John L. Gainer, Ph.D.(2)	79	2016
Robert Adams(1)(2)	67	2016
Mark T. Giles(1)	63	2016
Alan Levin(1)	55	2016
Robert R. Ruffolo (2)	68	2017

(1) Current member of the Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

(2) Current member of Science and Technology Committee.



Additional Information About Current Directors and Board Nominees

The paragraphs below provide information about each current director and nominee for director, including all positions he holds, his principal occupation and business experience for the past five years, and the names of other publicly held companies of which he currently serves as a director or served as a director during the past five years. We believe that all of our director nominees display personal and professional integrity; satisfactory levels of education and/or business experience; broad-based business acumen; an appropriate level of understanding of our business and its industry and other industries relevant to our business; the ability and willingness to devote adequate time to the work of the Board and its committees; a fit of skills and personality with those of our other directors that helps build a board of directors that is effective, collegial and responsive to the needs of our company; strategic thinking and a willingness to share ideas; a diversity of experiences, expertise and background; and the ability to represent the interests of all of our stockholders. The information presented below regarding each director and nominee for director also sets forth specific experience, qualifications, attributes and skills that led the Board to the conclusion that he or she should serve as a director in light of our business and structure.

David G. Kalergis — Mr. Kalergis has served as our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer since January 2016. Mr. Kalergis, along with Dr. Gainer, is the Company's co-founder and has served as a director of Diffusion Pharmaceuticals LLC ("<u>Diffusion LLC</u>") since its inception in 2001 and as its Chief Executive Officer since 2004. Prior to joining the Diffusion LLC, Mr. Kalergis held positions with the University of Virginia, as the general counsel and director of business development for Pharmaceutical Research Associates, Inc., a pharmaceutical contract research organization, as an intelligence analyst for the U.S. Government and with the law firm Dewey, Ballantine, Bushby, Palmer & Wood, practicing in the areas of corporate finance, public offerings and mergers and acquisitions. In addition, from July 1998 until May 2012, Mr. Kalergis served on the board of directors and audit committee of Virginia National Bank. Mr. Kalergis received a B.A. in psychology, as well as an M.B.A. and J.D., from the University of Virginia, and is a graduate of the Harvard Business School's Leadership and Strategy in the Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology Industry program.

The Board believes Mr. Kalergis' perspective and experience as the Chief Executive Officer and a director of Diffusion, as well as his depth of operating and senior management experience in our industry and educational background, provide him with the qualifications to serve as a director.

Isaac Blech — Mr. Blech has served as a director since August 2016. Mr. Blech is a biotechnology entrepreneur and investor. His current roles include Director of Cerecor, Inc., a CNS company, Director of ContraFect Corporation, an infectious disease company, Director of Aevi Genomic Medicine, Inc., a biotechnology company, and Vice Chairman of InspireMD, a stent company. He is Vice Chairman of Edge Therapeutics, Inc., a clinical-stage biotechnology company, Vice Chairman of Centrexion Corporation, a private company which is developing new modalities of pain control, Vice Chairman of Regenovation, Inc., a private company developing new ways to regenerate human tissue, Vice Chairman of X4 Pharmaceuticals, a private cancer immunology company, Vice Chairman of Sapience Therapeutics, a private oncology company and Vice Chairman of Aridis Pharmaceuticals, a private company with a product to treat pneumonia. He also serves as Vice Chairman of WaveGuide Corporation, a private company developing an NMR machine, and Vice Chairman of Alveo, a private company developing a hand held diagnostic device to replace PCR. He is also Vice Chairman of X-VAX Technology, Inc., a private vaccine company whose initial product is a preventative vaccine for Herpes 1 and Herpes 2, Vice Chairman of SpendSmart Networks, Inc., an electronic rewards company and Vice Chairman of root9B Technologies, a private cybersecurity company. Mr. Blech earned a B.A. degree from Baruch College in 1975.

The Board believes Mr. Blech's broad and substantial experience as a founder, director and major investor in numerous biotechnology companies, provide him with the qualifications to serve as a director.

John L. Gainer, Ph.D. — Dr. Gainer has served as a director and as our Chief Scientific Officer since January 2016. Dr. Gainer, along with Mr. Kalergis, is the Company's co-founder and has served as one of Diffusions LLC's directors and as its Chief Scientific Officer since its inception in 2001. From 1966 until his retirement in 2005, Dr. Gainer was a professor of chemical engineering at the University of Virginia. During his career, Dr. Gainer authored more than 100 scientific journal articles, including more than 30 published in medical journals, and spent two sabbaticals investigating drug actions and related research at Karolinska Institute in Stockholm and the laboratory of a major pharmaceutical company. He has been a member of the International Society for Oxygen Transport in Tissues since its inception in 1973. Dr. Gainer received a BSChE from West Virginia University, a MS in chemical engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, and a Ph.D. in chemical engineering from the University of Delaware.

The Board believes Dr. Gainer's perspective and experience as a director and officer of Diffusion, as well as the depth and breadth of his scientific knowledge, provide him with the qualifications to serve as a director.

Robert Adams — Mr. Adams has served as a director since January 2016 and as a director of Diffusion LLC since 2002. Prior to his retirement in 2015, Mr. Adams was a partner in the intellectual property law firm of Nixon & Vanderhye P.C, where he had practiced for over 25 years, focusing on patent litigation and international patent licensing and negotiations. During that time period, Mr. Adams was lead litigation counsel in more than 50 major intellectual property lawsuits, where he directly handled, for example, all intellectual property valuations and settlements on behalf of his U.S. and foreign clients. Moreover, Mr. Adams served as the head negotiator for a well-known Japanese consumer products company for 15 years in various complicated licensing situations. Those negotiations typically involved the cross-licensing of up to hundreds of U.S. and foreign patent rights. His lead licensing activities on behalf of that client included, among other things, multi-year negotiations with Texas Instruments, Advanced Micro Devices and Freescale. Mr. Adams received a B.A. from the University of Maryland and a J.D. from George Washington University (with honors), and is a member of the Virginia State Bar.

The Board believes Mr. Adams' perspective and experience as a director of Diffusion, as well as the depth and breadth of his intellectual property experience, provide him with the qualifications to serve as a director.

Mark T. Giles — Mr. Giles has served as a director since January 2016 and as a director of Diffusion LLC since 2008. Since July 2007, Mr. Giles has been the sole managing member of Panda Holdings, LLC, which engages in the investment and management of private capital. Prior to joining Panda Holdings, Mr. Giles served as the Chief Executive Officer of Virginia National Bank from July 1998 until June 2007 and thereafter continued to serve as the non-executive Chairman until December 2011. Prior to joining Virginia National Bank, Mr. Giles also served as the president of two publicly traded bank holding companies and subsidiary banks in Texas and practiced law with the banking group of a Houston law firm. He chairs the board of Expedition Trust Company and is a director of Door to Door Organics, Inc. Mr. Giles received a B.S. from the McIntire School of Commerce at the University of Virginia and a J.D. from the University of Virginia School of Law.

The Board believes Mr. Giles' perspective and experience as a director of Diffusion, as well as the depth and breadth of his business and legal experience, provide him with the qualifications to serve as a director.

Alan Levin — Mr. Levin has served as a director since January 2016 and as a director of Diffusion LLC since June 2015. He previously served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Endo Health Solutions Inc. ("<u>Endo</u>"), a global specialty healthcare company, from June 2009 until his retirement in September 2013. Prior to joining Endo, Mr. Levin worked with Texas Pacific Group, a leading private equity firm, and one of their start-up investments. Before that, he was Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer of Pfizer, Inc. where he worked for 20 years in a variety of executive positions of increasing responsibility, including Treasurer and Senior Vice President of Finance & Strategic Management for the company's research and development organization. Mr. Levin received a bachelor's degree from Princeton University and a master's degree from New York University's Stern School of Business. Mr. Levin is a certified public accountant. He is a member of the board of directors of Aceto Corp, a NASDAQ-traded company specialized in generics and pharmaceutical intermediate products. He is also a member of the Advisory Board of Auven Therapeutics, a private equity fund; and the Critical Path Institute, a nonprofit collaboration between the Food and Drug Administration and pharmaceutical industry participants focused on streamlining and accelerating the development and regulatory pathways for innovative medicines.

The Board believes that the combination of Mr. Levin's perspective and experience as a director of Diffusion; his experience in financial reporting, treasury and corporate finance (including his prior positions as chief financial officer of Endo and Pfizer, Inc.); and his executive-level experience in the pharmaceutical industry all provide him with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Robert R. Ruffolo

Dr. Ruffolo has served as a director since June 2017. Dr. Ruffolo is currently the President of Ruffolo Consulting, LLC. He formerly served as President of Research and Development and as Corporate Senior Vice President for Wyeth Pharmaceuticals, which was acquired by Pfizer in 2009. Before joining Wyeth in 2000, Dr. Ruffolo spent 17 years at SmithKline Beecham Pharmaceuticals (now GlaxoSmithKline) where he was Senior Vice President and Director of Biological Sciences, Worldwide, and prior to that, he spent 6 years at Lilly Research Laboratories where he was Chairman of the Cardiovascular Research Committee. Dr. Ruffolo received a B.S in pharmacy and his Ph.D. in pharmacology from The Ohio State University.

Board Recommendation

The Board recommends a vote FOR the election of all seven of the nominees for director named in this proxy statement.

PROPOSAL NO. 2 RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Change and Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

On January 8, 2016, the Audit Committee of the Board (i) approved the dismissal of Deloitte & Touche LLP ("<u>Deloitte</u>") as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm effective as of the date of Deloitte's completion of the audit services for the year ended December 31, 2015 and the filing of the Company's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 and (ii) appointed KPMG LLP ("<u>KPMG</u>") as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2016. On March 25, 2016, the Company filed its annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Deloitte was initially engaged by the Company on November 20, 2014 and served as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. Deloitte's reports on the Company's consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor was either report qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles, except that Deloitte's report on the Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 included explanatory paragraphs relating to the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern and the acquisition of Diffusion LLC pursuant to the merger that occurred in January 2016 with Diffusion LLC.

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 and the subsequent interim period prior to the Company's dismissal of Deloitte on March 25, 2016, there were no: (i) disagreements with Deloitte on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure which, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Deloitte, would have caused Deloitte to make reference to the matter in their report, or (ii) reportable events as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 and the subsequent interim period prior to the Company's engagement of KPMG, neither the Company nor anyone acting on its behalf consulted KPMG regarding either: (i) the application of accounting principles to a specific transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Company's consolidated financial statements, and either a written report was provided to the Company or oral advice was provided that KPMG concluded was an important factor considered by the Company in reaching a decision as to the accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue; or (ii) any matter that was either the subject of a disagreement (as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K).

Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Committee has selected KPMG LLP ("<u>KPMG</u>") as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018.

Neither our Bylaws nor other governing documents or law require stockholder ratification of the selection of KPMG as our independent registered public accounting firm. However, the Audit Committee is submitting the selection of KPMG to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. If the stockholders fail to ratify the selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether or not to retain that firm. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee, in its discretion, may direct the appointment of different independent auditors at any time during the year if they determine that such a change would be in our best interests and the best interests of our stockholders.

Representatives of KPMG will be present at the Annual Meeting to respond to appropriate questions. They also will have an opportunity to make a statement if they wish to do so.

Independent Auditor's Fees

The table below presents fees billed to us for professional services rendered by KPMG, our current independent registered public accounting firm, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

	Aggregate Amount Billed			
	2017		2016(1)	
Audit Fees	\$ 366,623	\$	605,146	
Audit-Related Fees	\$ 0	\$	0	
Tax Fees(2)	\$ 27,003	\$	22,997	
All Other Fees	\$ 0	\$	0	

(1) Audit fees for 2016 consisted of fees payable to KPMG for the audit of our annual financial statements and the review of our quarterly financial information for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the audit of our annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

(2) Tax Fees consist of fees payable to KPMG for NOL analysis.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee has adopted procedures pursuant to which all audit, audit-related and tax services and all permissible non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm must be pre-approved by the Audit Committee. All services rendered by KPMG during 2017 and 2016 were permissible under applicable laws and regulations and were approved in advance by the Audit Committee in accordance with the rules adopted by the SEC in order to implement requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 other than *de minimis* non-audit services allowed under applicable law.

Board Recommendation

The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR ratification of the selection of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2018.

PROPOSAL NO. 3 APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO DIFFUSION PHARMACEUTICALS INC.'S CHARTER TO EFFECT THE RESERVE STOCK SPLIT

General

The Board has unanimously approved, and recommended that our stockholders approve, an amendment to our Charter (the "<u>Certificate of</u> <u>Amendment</u>"), to effect the Reverse Stock Split at a ratio of not less than one-to-two and not greater than one-to-fifteen, with the final decision of whether to proceed with the Reverse Stock Split, the effective time of the Reverse Stock Split, and the exact ratio of the Reverse Stock Split to be determined by the Board, in its discretion. If the stockholders approve the Reverse Stock Split, and the Board decides to implement it, the Reverse Stock Split will become effective as of 12:01 a.m., Eastern Time on a date to be determined by the Board that will be specified in the Certificate of Amendment. If the Board does not decide to implement the Reverse Stock Split within twelve months from the date of the Annual Meeting, the authority granted in this proposal to implement the Reverse Stock Split will terminate.

The Reverse Stock Split will be realized simultaneously for all outstanding common stock. The Reverse Stock Split will affect all holders of common stock uniformly and each stockholder will hold the same percentage of common stock outstanding immediately following the Reverse Stock Split as that stockholder held immediately prior to the Reverse Stock Split, except for immaterial adjustments that may result from the treatment of fractional shares as described below. The Reverse Stock Split will not change the par value of our common stock and will not reduce the number of authorized shares of common stock.

Reasons for the Reverse Stock Split

Our Board believes that a Reverse Stock Split is desirable for a number of reasons. First, the Board believes that a Reverse Stock Split could improve the marketability and liquidity of our common stock. Second, the Board believes that a Reverse Stock Split may facilitate the continued listing of our common stock on the NASDAQ Capital Market. Third, the Board believes that a Reverse Stock Split would assist in providing us with flexibility and as many alternatives as possible to obtain financings that we are seeking to accomplish.

Marketability

Our Board believes that the increased market price of our common stock expected as a result of implementing a Reverse Stock Split could improve the marketability and liquidity of our stock and could encourage interest and trading in our stock. Theoretically, the number of shares outstanding and the per share price should not, by themselves, affect the marketability of our common stock, the type of investor who acquires them or our reputation in the financial community. However, in practice, we believe this is not necessarily the case, as we believe that many investors view low-priced stocks as speculative and generally avoid the purchase of such securities. Our Board believes that there is a reluctance of many brokerage firms to recommend low-priced stocks to their retail clients (whether due to internal restrictions and/or limitations or otherwise). Further, we believe that certain brokerage house policies and practices tend to discourage individual brokers who administer brokerage accounts within those firms from encouraging their clients to transact trades in low-priced stocks. In addition, institutional investors, pursuant to internal policies, often are restricted and/or limited from investing in companies whose stocks trade at low prices. Stockbrokers are also subject to certain restrictions on their ability to recommend lower priced stocks to their retail clients trading because of what we believe to be a general presumption in the industry that such securities are highly speculative. In addition, the structure of trading commissions tends to have an adverse impact upon purchasers of low-priced stocks because the brokerage commission on a sale of such securities generally represents a higher percentage of the purchase/sales price than the commission on a relatively higher-priced issue. We believe that the Reverse Stock Split will make our common stock a more attractive and cost effective investment for many investors, which we in turn believe would enhance the liquidity of the holders of our common stock

The Reverse Stock Split is intended, in part, to result in a price level for our common stock that will increase investor interest and possibly eliminate, or at the least reduce, the resistance of brokerage firms. On April 26, 2018, the closing price for our common stock on The NASDAQ Capital Market was \$0.52 per share. No assurances can be given that the market price for our common stock will increase in the same proportion as the Reverse Stock Split or, if increased, that such price will be maintained. In addition, no assurances can be given that the Reverse Stock Split will increase the price of our common stock to a sufficiently high enough level that is attractive to brokerage houses and retail and institutional investors.

Further, our Board believes that a higher stock price could help us establish business development relationships with other companies. Theoretically, decreasing the number of shares of common stock outstanding should not, by itself, affect our reputation in our business community. In practice, however, we believe that potential business development partners may be less confident in the prospects of a company with a low stock price, and are less likely to enter into business relationships with a company with a low stock price. If the Reverse Stock Split successfully increases the per share price of our common stock, we believe this may increase our ability to attract business development partners.

Stock Exchange Requirements

Our common stock is currently listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol "DFFN". On March 2, 2018, we received a notice from Listing Qualifications Department of The Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC ("<u>Nasdaq</u>") that we were not in compliance with Nasdaq's Listing 5550(a)(2) (the "Rule"), as the bid price for our common stock had closed below \$1.00 per share for the previous 30 consecutive business days. The Notice has had no effect on the listing or trading of our common stock at this time. According to the Notice, we have 180 calendar days from the date of the Notice, or until August 29, 2018, to regain compliance with the minimum bid price requirement. To regain compliance, the bid price for our common stock must close at \$1.00 per share or more for a minimum of 10 consecutive business days. Our failure to regain compliance during this period could result in delisting.

In the event that the Company does not regain compliance with the Rule prior to the expiration of the grace period, we expect to receive written notification that our common stock is subject to delisting, in which case we may appeal the decision to a Nasdaq Hearings Panel (the "Panel"). In the event of an appeal, our common stock would remain listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market pending a decision by the Panel following the hearing.

The Reverse Stock Split could enhance our ability to regain compliance with the Rule if reducing the number of outstanding shares of our common stock, and thereby increasing the per share market price of our common stock, increases demand for our common stock and correspondingly increases the bid price for our common stock. The additional financing flexibility described below could also provide additional alternatives for regaining compliance with the Rule following the Reverse Stock Split. However, we cannot provide any assurance that (i) any increase our stock price would remain following the Reverse Stock Split; (ii) we would again meet or exceed the \$1.00 per share or more bid price requirement; or (iii) we would satisfy the other requirements for continued listing on The NASDAQ Capital Market.

Financing Flexibility

In addition, the Reverse Stock Split will provide us with the ability to support our present capital needs and future anticipated growth. The Reverse Stock Split alone would have no effect on our authorized capital stock, and the total number of authorized shares would remain the same as before the Reverse Stock Split. This would have the effect of increasing the number of shares of common stock available for issuance, which the Board feels it is important to provide us with flexibility and as many alternatives as possible to obtain financing. We have historically met our capital needs primarily through the sale of our debt and equity securities. The availability of additional shares of common stock would provide us with the flexibility to consider and respond to future business opportunities and needs as they arise, including public or private financings, subscription rights offerings, mergers, acquisitions, stock dividends, stock splits and the granting of equity incentive awards. The additional available shares would be available for issuance from time to time at the discretion of the Board when opportunities arise, without further stockholder action or the related delays and expenses, except as may be required for a particular transaction by law, the rules of any exchange on which our securities may then be listed, or other agreements or restrictions. There are no preemptive rights relating to the common stock. As such, any issuance of additional shares of our common stock would increase the number of outstanding shares of our common stock and (unless such issuance was pro-rata among existing stockholders) the percentage ownership of existing stockholders would be diluted accordingly. At this time, we do not have any plans, arrangements or understandings, whether written or oral, to issue any of the additional shares that will be made available if the Reverse Stock Split is approved and the Board implements the Reverse Stock Split.

Reducing the number of outstanding shares of our common stock through the Reverse Stock Split is intended, absent other factors, to increase the per share market price of our common stock. However, other factors, such as events relating to our financial results, general market conditions and the market perception of our Company, may adversely affect the market price of our common stock. As a result, there can be no assurance that the Reverse Stock Split, if completed, will result in the intended benefits described above, that the market price of our common stock will increase following the Reverse Stock Split or that the market price of our common stock will not decrease in the future. Additionally, we cannot assure you that the market price per share of our common stock after a Reverse Stock Split will increase in proportion to the reduction in the number of shares of our common stock outstanding before the Reverse Stock Split. Accordingly, the total market capitalization of our common stock after the Reverse Stock Split.



Determination of Ratio

The ratio of the Reverse Stock Split, if approved and implemented, will be a ratio of not less than one-to-two and not more than one-to-fifteen, as determined by our Board in its sole discretion. The Board believes that stockholder adoption of a range of Reverse Stock Split ratios (as opposed to adoption of a single Reverse Stock Split ratio or a set of fixed ratios) provides maximum flexibility to achieve the purposes of a Reverse Stock Split and, therefore, is in the best interests of the Company. In determining a ratio following the receipt of stockholder adoption, the Board (or any authorized committee of the Board) may consider, among other things, factors such as:

- the historical trading price and trading volume of our common stock;
- the number of shares of our common stock outstanding;
- the then-prevailing trading price and trading volume of our common stock and the anticipated impact of the Reverse Stock Split on the trading market for our common stock;
- the impact of the Reverse Stock Split on our ability to regain compliance with the listing standards for The NASDAQ Capital Market;
- the anticipated impact of the Reverse Stock Split on our ability to raise additional financing;
- the anticipated impact of a particular ratio on our ability to reduce administrative and transactional costs; and
- prevailing general market and economic conditions.

The Board (or any authorized committee of the Board) reserves the right to elect to abandon the Reverse Stock Split, notwithstanding stockholder adoption thereof, if it determines, in its sole discretion, that the Reverse Stock Split is no longer in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. The Reverse Stock Split, if authorized pursuant to this resolution and if deemed by the Board to be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, will be effected, if at all, at a time that is not later than twelve months from the date of the Annual Meeting.

Reverse Stock Split Amendment to the Charter

If the Reverse Stock Split is approved, the following paragraph shall be added at the end of subsection A of ARTICLE IV of the Charter:

"Effective upon the effective time of this Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware (the "<u>Effective Time</u>"), each [intentionally left blank] shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall, automatically and without the necessity of any further action, be changed, reclassified and combined into one (1) share of Common Stock (the "<u>Reverse Stock Split</u>"). No fractional shares shall be issued in connection with the Reverse Stock Split. Stockholders who otherwise would be entitled to receive fractional shares of Common Stock shall have rounded up to one additional whole share. Each certificate that immediately prior to the Effective Time represented shares of Common Stock ("<u>Old Certificates</u>"), shall thereafter represent that number of shares of Common Stock into which the shares of Common Stock represented by the Old Certificate shall have been combined, subject to the elimination of fractional shares as described above."

The Certificate of Amendment attached hereto as <u>Appendix A</u> reflects the changes that will be implemented to our Charter if the Reverse Stock Split is approved.

Principal Effects of the Reverse Stock Split

If the stockholders approve the proposal to authorize the Board to implement the Reverse Stock Split and the Board implements the Reverse Stock Split, we will amend the existing provision of Article IV of our Charter in the manner set forth above.

By approving this amendment, stockholders will approve the combination of any number of shares of common stock between and including two (2) and fifteen (15), with the exact number to be determined by the Board, into one (1) share. The Certificate of Amendment to be filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware will include only that number determined by the Board to be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. In accordance with these resolutions, the Board will not implement any amendment providing for a different split ratio.

As explained above, the Reverse Stock Split will be effected simultaneously for all issued and outstanding shares of common stock and the exchange ratio will be the same for all issued and outstanding shares of common stock. The Reverse Stock Split will affect all of our stockholders uniformly and will not affect any stockholder's percentage ownership interests in the Company, except to the extent that the Reverse Stock Split results in any of our stockholders having his or her shares rounded up to a whole share in lieu of owning a fractional share, as described in the section titled "**Fractional Shares**," below.

The Reverse Stock Split will not change the terms of our common stock. After the Reverse Stock Split, the shares of our common stock will have the same voting rights and rights to dividends and distributions and will be identical in all other respects to our common stock now authorized. Common stock issued pursuant to the Reverse Stock Split will remain fully paid and non-assessable. The Reverse Stock Split will not affect the Company's continuing obligations under the periodic reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "<u>Exchange Act</u>"). Following the Reverse Stock Split, bid and ask prices for our common stock will continue to be quoted on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol "DFFN".

The shares that are authorized but unissued after the Reverse Stock Split will be available for issuance, and, if we issue these shares, the ownership interest of holders of our common stock may be diluted. We may issue such shares to raise capital and/or as consideration in acquiring other businesses or establishing strategic relationships with other companies. Such acquisitions or strategic relationships may be effected using shares of common stock or other securities convertible into common stock and/or by using capital that may need to be raised by selling such securities. We do not have any agreement, arrangement or understanding at this time with respect to any specific transaction or acquisition for which the newly unissued authorized shares would be issued.

Effect on Authorized but Unissued Shares

The Reverse Stock Split will have the effect of significantly increasing the number of authorized but unissued shares of common stock available for issuance. The number of shares of common stock that we are authorized to issue will not be decreased and will remain at 1,000,000,000. Because the number of outstanding shares will be reduced as a result of the Reverse Stock Split, the number of shares available for future issuance by us will be increased. As of March 31, 2018 we have approximately 949,473,453 authorized and unissued shares, of which approximately 34,781,103 are currently reserved for issuance upon the exercise or conversion of outstanding stock options, warrants and convertible debt securities. Upon completion of the Reverse Stock Split we expect to have significantly more authorized and unissued shares.

Procedure for Effecting Reverse Stock Split and Exchange of Stock Certificates

If the Reverse Stock Split is approved by the Company's stockholders, and if at such time the Board still believes that the Reverse Stock Split is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, the Board will determine the ratio of the Reverse Stock Split to be implemented. The Reverse Stock Split will become effective as of 12:01 a.m., Eastern Time on the date specified in the Certificate of Amendment as filed with the office of the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware (the "effective time"). The Board will determine the exact timing of the filing of the Certificate of Amendment based on its evaluation as to when the filing would be the most advantageous to the Company and its stockholders. If the Board does not decide to implement the Reverse Stock Split within twelve months from the date of the Annual Meeting, the authority granted in this proposal to implement the Reverse Stock Split will terminate.

Except as described below under the section titled "**Fractional Shares**," at the effective time, each number of issued and outstanding pre-reverse split shares that the Board has determined will be combined into one post-reverse split share, will, automatically and without any further action on the part of our stockholders, be combined into and become one share of common stock, and each certificate which, immediately prior to the effective time represented pre-reverse stock split shares, will be deemed for all corporate purposes to evidence ownership of post-reverse split shares.

Fractional Shares

No fractional shares will be issued in connection with the Reverse Stock Split. Stockholders of record at the effective time of the Reverse Stock Split who otherwise would be entitled to receive fractional shares because they hold a number of pre-split shares not evenly divisible by the number of pre-split shares for which each post-split share is to be exchanged, will, in lieu of a fractional share, be entitled, upon surrender to the exchange agent of certificate(s) representing such pre-split shares, to entitled to receive an additional share of common stock. In other words, any fractional share will be rounded up to the nearest whole number.

Risks Associated with the Reverse Stock Split

We cannot predict whether the Reverse Stock Split will increase the market price for our common stock. The history of similar stock split combinations for companies in like circumstances is varied, and the market price of our common stock will also be based on our performance and other factors, some of which are unrelated to the number of shares outstanding. Further, there are a number of risks associated with the Reverse Stock Split, including:

- The market price per share of our shares of common stock post-Reverse Stock Split may not ever exceed or remain in excess of the minimum price per share necessary such that the minimum bid price of our common stock exceeds \$1.00 per share, and the Company may fail to meet the other requirements for continued listing on The NASDAQ Capital Market.
- Although the Board believes that a higher stock price may help generate the interest of new investors, the Reverse Stock Split may not result in a pershare price that will successfully attract certain types of investors and such resulting share price may not satisfy the investing guidelines of institutional investors or investment funds. Further, other factors, such as our financial results, market conditions and the market perception of our business, may adversely affect the interest of new investors in the shares of our common stock. As a result, the trading liquidity of the shares of our common stock may not improve as a result of the Reverse Stock Split and there can be no assurance that the Reverse Stock Split, if completed, will result in the intended benefits described above.
- The Reverse Stock Split could be viewed negatively by the market, and other factors, such as those described above, may adversely affect the market price of the shares of our common stock. Consequently, the market price per post-Reverse Stock Split shares may not increase in proportion to the reduction of the number of shares of our common stock outstanding before the implementation of the Reverse Stock Split. Accordingly, the total market capitalization of our shares of common stock after the Reverse Stock Split may be lower than the total market capitalization before the Reverse Stock Split.
- The Reverse Stock Split may result in some stockholders owning "odd lots" of less than 100 shares of common stock. Odd lot shares may be more difficult to sell, and brokerage commissions and other costs of transactions in odd lots are generally somewhat higher than the costs of transactions in "round lots" of even multiples of 100 shares.

Book-Entry Shares

If the Reverse Stock Split is effected, stockholders who hold uncertificated shares (i.e., shares held in book-entry form and not represented by a physical stock certificate), either as direct or beneficial owners, will have their holdings electronically adjusted automatically by our transfer agent (and, for beneficial owners, by their brokers or banks that hold in "street name" for their benefit, as the case may be) to give effect to the Reverse Stock Split. Stockholders who hold uncertificated shares as direct owners will be sent a statement of holding from our transfer agent that indicates the number of post-reverse stock split shares of our common stock owned in book-entry form.

Certificated Shares

As soon as practicable after the effective time of the Reverse Stock Split, stockholders will be notified that the Reverse Stock Split has been effected. We expect that our transfer agent will act as exchange agent for purposes of implementing the exchange of stock certificates. Holders of pre-split shares will be asked to surrender to the exchange agent certificates representing pre-split shares in exchange for certificates representing post-split shares in accordance with the procedures to be set forth in a letter of transmittal to be sent by us or our exchange agent. No new certificates will be issued to a stockholder until such stockholder has surrendered such stockholder's outstanding certificate(s) together with the properly completed and executed letter of transmittal to the exchange agent. Any pre-split shares submitted for transfer, whether pursuant to a sale or other disposition, or otherwise, will automatically be exchanged for post-split shares.



STOCKHOLDERS SHOULD NOT DESTROY ANY STOCK CERTIFICATE(S) AND SHOULD NOT SUBMIT ANY CERTIFICATE(S) UNTIL REQUESTED TO DO SO.

Principal Effects of Reverse Stock Split on Outstanding Options, Outstanding Convertible Debt, Warrants, and Option Plan

As of March 31, 2018, there were outstanding stock options to purchase an aggregate of 3,053,797 shares of our common stock with a weighted average exercise price of \$6.30 per share and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 31,707,233 shares of common stock with a weighted average exercise price of \$1.87 per share. In addition, as of March 31, 2018 we had \$550,000 in convertible debt outstanding entitling the holders thereof to acquire shares of our common stock. When the Reverse Stock Split becomes effective, the number of shares of common stock covered by such rights will be reduced to between and including one-fifteenth and one-half of the number currently covered (rounded up to the nearest whole number), and the exercise or conversion price per share will be increased by between and including two and fifteen times the current exercise or conversion price (rounded down to the nearest \$0.01), resulting in the same aggregate price being required to be paid therefor upon exercise or conversion thereof as was required immediately preceding the Reverse Stock Split.

In addition, the number of shares of common stock and number of shares of common stock subject to stock options or similar rights authorized under the Company's equity incentive plan will automatically be proportionately adjusted for the Reverse Stock Split ratio, such that fewer shares will be subject to such plans. Further, the per share exercise price under such plans will automatically be proportionately adjusted for the Reverse Stock Split.

Accounting Matters

The Reverse Stock Split will not affect the common stock capital account on our balance sheet. However, because the par value of our common stock will remain unchanged at the effective time of the Reverse Stock Split, the components that make up the common stock capital account will change by offsetting amounts. Depending on the ratio of the Reverse Stock Split the Board decides to implement, the stated capital component will be reduced proportionately based upon the Reverse Stock Split and the additional paid-in capital component will be increased with the amount by which the stated capital is reduced. Immediately after the Reverse Stock Split, the per share net income or loss and net book value of our common stock will be increased because there will be fewer shares of common stock outstanding. All historic share and per share amounts in our financial statements and related footnotes will be adjusted accordingly for the Reverse Stock Split.

Effect on Par Value

The proposed amendment to our Charter will not affect the par value of our common stock, which will remain at \$0.001 per share.

No Going Private Transaction

Notwithstanding the decrease in the number of outstanding shares following the proposed Reverse Stock Split, our Board does not intend for this transaction to be the first step in a "going private transaction" within the meaning of Rule 13e-3 of the Exchange Act.

Potential Anti-Takeover Effect

Although the increased proportion of unissued authorized shares to issued shares could, under certain circumstances, have an anti-takeover effect (for example, by permitting issuances that would dilute the stock ownership of a person seeking to effect a change in the composition of the Board or contemplating a tender offer or other transaction for the combination of the Company with another company), the Reverse Stock Split proposal is not being proposed in response to any effort of which we are aware to accumulate shares of our common stock or obtain control of the Company, nor is it part of a plan by management to recommend a series of similar amendments to the Board and stockholders. Other than the Reverse Stock Split proposal, the Board does not currently contemplate recommending the adoption of any other actions that could be construed to affect the ability of third parties to take over or change control of the Company.

No Dissenters' Appraisal Rights

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, our Charter or bylaws, the Company's stockholders are not entitled to dissenters' appraisal rights with respect to the Reverse Stock Split, and we will not independently provide stockholders with any such right.

Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Reverse Stock Split

The following is not intended as tax or legal advice. Each holder should seek advice based on his, her or its particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

The following is a summary of certain United States federal income tax consequences of the Reverse Stock Split generally applicable to beneficial holders of shares of our common stock. This summary addresses only such stockholders who hold their pre-split shares as capital assets and will hold the post-split shares as capital assets. This discussion does not address all United States federal income tax considerations that may be relevant to particular stockholders in light of their individual circumstances or to stockholders that are subject to special rules, such as financial institutions, trusts, estates, entities treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes, tax-exempt organizations, regulated investment companies, REITs, insurance companies, dealers in securities and foreign stockholders. The following summary is based upon the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "<u>Code</u>"), applicable Treasury Regulations thereunder, judicial decisions and Internal Revenue Service ("<u>IRS</u>") rulings, as of the date hereof, all of which are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis. Tax consequences under state, local, foreign, and other laws are not addressed herein. Each stockholder should consult their tax advisor as to the particular facts and circumstances which may be unique to such stockholder and also as to any estate, gift, state, local or foreign tax considerations arising out of the Reverse Stock Split.

Exchange Pursuant to Reverse Stock Split

The Reverse Stock Split is intended to qualify as a tax-free recapitalization under the Code. Assuming the Reverse Stock Split so qualifies, then generally, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, no gain or loss will be recognized by the Company in connection with the Reverse Stock Split, and no gain or loss will be recognized by the stockholders that exchange their pre-split shares for post-split shares. The post-split shares in the hands of a stockholder following the Reverse Stock Split will generally have an aggregate tax basis equal to the aggregate tax basis of the pre-split shares held by that stockholder immediately prior to the Reverse Stock Split, and a stockholder's holding period for its post-split shares generally will be the same as its holding period for the pre-split shares.

Whole Shares in Lieu of Fractional Shares

A stockholder who receives a whole share of common stock in lieu of a fractional share generally may recognize gain in an amount not to exceed the excess of the fair market value of such whole share over the fair market value of the fractional share to which the stockholder was otherwise entitled. Any such recognition of gain may affect the holding period and adjusted tax basis of the stockholder's whole share received in lieu of a fractional share. Stockholders should consult with their own tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences to them of the Reverse Stock Split. Backup withholding may apply to a stockholder who receives a whole share of common stock in lieu of a fractional share unless the stockholder provides the exchange agent with appropriate documentation establishing that backup withholding is not required.

Interests of Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors and executive officers have no substantial interests, directly or indirectly, in the matters set forth in this proposal except to the extent of their ownership of shares of our common stock.

Reservation of Right to Abandon Reverse Stock Split

We reserve the right to not file the Certificate of Amendment and to abandon the Reverse Stock Split without further action by our stockholders at any time before the effectiveness of the filing with the Secretary of the State of Delaware of the Certificate of Amendment, even if the authority to effect these amendments is approved by our stockholders at the annual meeting. By voting in favor of a reverse stock split, you are expressly also authorizing the Board to delay, not proceed with, and abandon, these proposed amendments if it should so decide, in its sole discretion, that such action is in the best interests of our stockholders.

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of our common stock entitled to vote on the matter either in person or by proxy is required to approve the Certificate of Amendment to our Charter to effect the Reverse Stock Split of our common stock. Abstentions and broker non-votes, if any, will thus count as votes AGAINST the Reverse Stock Split.

Holders of proxies solicited by this Proxy Statement will vote the proxies received by them as directed on the proxy card or, if no direction is made, then FOR the Reverse Stock Split.

Board Recommendation

The Board unanimously recommends that stockholders vote "FOR" the Amendment to the Charter to effect the Reverse Stock Split.

PROPOSAL NO. 4 ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Introduction

The Board is providing our stockholders with an advisory vote on executive compensation pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, or the Dodd-Frank Act, and Section 14A of the Exchange Act. This advisory vote, commonly known as a "say-on-pay" vote, is an annual, non-binding vote on the compensation paid to our named executive officers as described in this proxy statement under the heading *"Executive Compensation*", including the Summary Compensation Table and the other related tables and narrative disclosure. The next say-on-pay vote will be at the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. In general, our executive compensation program during the year ended December 31, 2017 was designed to, among other things, attract and retain executives who are important to the success of our company and the creation of value for our stockholders, create stockholder value by aligning executives' interests with stockholders' interests and motivate and reward our executives for the achievement of company and individual performance objectives, the creation of stockholder value in the short and long term and their contributions, in general, to the success of our company by supporting a "pay-for-performance" philosophy.

Please read the "*Executive Compensation*" section of this proxy statement. That section of this proxy statement, which includes compensation tables and related narrative discussion, describes the compensation programs and policies for our named executive officers and the executive compensation decisions made by the Compensation Committee and the Board in 2017.

We are requesting stockholder approval of the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement. This "say-on-pay" vote gives our stockholders the opportunity to express their views on our executive compensation. The vote is not intended to address any specific item of compensation, but rather the overall compensation of our named executive officers and the compensation philosophy, policies and practices described in this proxy statement.

Proposed Resolution

Accordingly, the Board unanimously recommends that our stockholders vote in favor of the say-on-pay vote as set forth in the following resolution at the Annual Meeting:

RESOLVED, that the stockholders of Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. hereby approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation paid to the named executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2017, as described in this proxy statement pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the "*Executive Compensation*" section, the Summary Compensation Table and the other related tables and narrative disclosure.

As this is an advisory vote, the outcome of the vote is not binding on us with respect to future executive compensation decisions, including those relating to our named executive officers, or otherwise. However, the Compensation Committee and the Board will take into account the outcome of the vote when considering future executive compensation decisions.

Board Recommendation

The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR approval, on an advisory basis, of the compensation paid to our named executive officers, as described in this proxy statement.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The table below provides summary compensation information concerning compensation awarded for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 to the individuals that served as our named executive officers for the 2017 fiscal year.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and Principal Position	Year	Sa	llary (1)	Inc	on-Equity centive Plan pensation(2)	 Option Awards (3)	All Other ompensation (4)	Total
David G. Kalergis	2017	\$	317,945	\$	81,000	\$ 99,966	\$ 11,613	\$ 510,524
Chief Executive Officer	2016	\$	244,144	\$	96,000	\$ 410,240	\$ 0	\$ 750,384
John L. Gainer, Ph.D.	2017	\$	265,958	\$	89,000	\$ 82,899	\$ 10,508	\$ 448,365
Chief Scientific Officer	2016	\$	191,740	\$	79,000	\$ 146,209	\$ 3,615	\$ 420,564
Ben L. Shealy	2017	\$	178,400	\$	51,000	\$ 56,323	\$ 4,312	\$ 290,035
Senior Vice President – Finance, Treasurer & Secretary	2016	\$	152,225	\$	58,000	\$ 107,892	\$ 3,808	\$ 321,925

(1) Represents cash portion of base salary as described below under "--*Employment Agreements*" and health insurance reimbursements.

(2) Represents annual cash incentive bonuses.

- (3) The amounts shown in this column reflect the grant date fair value of option awards granted during the applicable year, calculated in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 718 and determined without regard to forfeitures. The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are disclosed in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
- (4) The amounts reported in this column represent 401(k) Plan matching contributions by the Company for the applicable year.

Employment Agreements

David G. Kalergis, Chief Executive Officer. Effective September 6, 2016, we entered into an employment agreement with David G. Kalergis pursuant to which he serves as our Chief Executive Officer. The employment agreement has an indefinite term. Mr. Kalergis is entitled to an annual base salary of \$410,000, subject to increase at the discretion of the Board. Mr. Kalergis has the opportunity to earn a target annual bonus of 45 percent of his base salary. The Board may, in its discretion, pay a portion of Mr. Kalergis' annual salary and annual bonus in the form of equity or equity-based compensation, provided that commencing with the year following the year in which a "change of control" (as defined in the employment agreement) occurs, Mr. Kalergis' entire base salary and annual bonus will be paid in cash. For 2017, the cash portion of Mr. Kalergis' base salary was \$317,945. The employment agreement contains certain severance and change of control provisions as described in more detail under the heading "*—Post-Termination Severance and Change in Control Arrangements.*" The employment agreement also contains certain non-competition and non-solicitation provisions (each applicable during employment and at all times thereafter).

John L. Gainer, Chief Scientific Officer. Effective October 18, 2016, we entered into an employment agreement with John L. Gainer pursuant to which he serves as our Chief Scientific Officer. The employment agreement has an indefinite term. Dr. Gainer is entitled to an annual base salary of \$340,000, subject to increase at the discretion of the Board. Dr. Gainer has the opportunity to earn a target annual bonus of 35 percent of his base salary. The Board may, in its discretion, pay a portion of Dr. Gainer's annual salary and annual bonus in the form of equity or equity-based compensation, provided that commencing with the year following the year in which a "change of control" (as defined in the employment agreement) occurs, Dr. Gainer's entire base salary and annual bonus will be paid in cash. For 2017, the cash portion of Dr. Gainer's base salary was \$265,958. The employment agreement contains certain severance and change of control provisions as described in more detail under the heading "*—Post-Termination Severance and Change in Control Arrangements.*" The employment agreement also contains certain non-competition and non-solicitation provisions (each applicable during employment and for 18 months thereafter), as well as confidentiality and non-disparagement provisions (each applicable during employment and at all times thereafter).

Ben L. Shealy, Senior Vice President – Finance, Treasurer and Secretary. Effective October 12, 2016, we entered into an employment agreement with Ben L. Shealy pursuant to which he serves as our Senior Vice President – Finance, Treasurer and Secretary. The employment agreement has an indefinite term. Mr. Shealy is entitled to an annual base salary of \$231,000, subject to increase at the discretion of the Board. Mr. Shealy has the opportunity to earn a target annual bonus of 25 percent of his base salary. The Board may, in its discretion, pay a portion of Mr. Shealy's annual salary and annual bonus in the form of equity or equity-based compensation, provided that commencing with the year following the year in which a "change of control" (as defined in the employment agreement) occurs, Mr. Shealy's entire base salary and annual bonus will be paid in cash. For 2017, the cash portion of Mr. Shealy's base salary was \$178,400. The employment agreement contains certain severance and change of control provisions as described in more detail under the heading "— *Post-Termination Severance and Change in Control Arrangements.*" The employment agreement also contains certain non-competition and non-solicitation provisions (each applicable during employment and for 18 months thereafter), as well as confidentiality and non-disparagement provisions (each applicable during employment and tall times thereafter).

Other Compensatory Arrangements

The Compensation Committee administers the Company's 2015 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended, in which our named executive officers participate, the bonus payments made to our named executive officers provided for in the employment agreements discussed above under the heading "— *Employment Agreements*" and any other compensation-related matters as they otherwise determine in their discretion. The option grants made in 2017 to the named executive officers vest and become exercisable in equal parts each month until fully vested on the third anniversary of the grant date, subject to their continued employment through the applicable vesting date.

2017 Bonus Compensation

The bonuses paid to Messrs. Kalergis, Gainer and Shealy for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 (paid in March 2018) were paid in cash. As outlined in below under "--*Employment Agreements*", the annual bonus payout targets for Messrs. Kalergis, Gainer and Shealy are 45%, 35% and 25%, respectively, of each of such executive's base salary.

Executive bonuses are determined by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee bases their determination of bonuses by considering a number of factors, the principal factor being performance based upon performance goals developed by the Compensation Committee in consultation with, among others, our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Science Officer and Senior Vice President of Finance. Other important factors include clinical trial progress, business development activities, status of public filings and stock price performance.

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into agreements with each of our named executive officers under which we are required to indemnify them against expenses, judgments, penalties, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred, including expenses of a derivative action, in connection with an actual or threatened proceeding if any of them may be made a party because he or she is or was one of our executive officers. We will be obligated to pay these amounts only if the executive officer acted in good faith and in a manner that he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to our best interests. With respect to any criminal proceeding, we will be obligated to pay these amounts only if the executive officer had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. The indemnification agreements also set forth procedures that will apply in the event of a claim for indemnification.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The table below provides information regarding unexercised stock option awards held by each of our named executive officers that remained outstanding at December 31, 2017.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

				Option Aw	ards
Name	Grant Date	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable ⁽¹⁾	Option Exercise Price (\$)	Option Expiration Date
David G. Kalergis	5/17/2012	29,587	0	\$ 2.10	5/17/2022
	10/9/2012	9,132	0	\$ 2.10	10/9/2022
	10/9/2012	27,395	0	\$ 2.10	10/9/2022
	10/5/2013	12,785	0	\$ 3.40	10/5/2023
	10/5/2013	18,264	0	\$ 6.10	10/5/2023
	12/1/2014	18,264	0	\$ 4.10	12/1/2024
	12/1/2014	12,785	0	\$ 4.10	12/1/2024
	10/30/2015	26,387	10,140	\$ 5.40	10/30/2025
	10/30/2015	23,953	9,207	\$ 5.40	10/30/2025
	5/16/2016	10,778	9,639	\$ 9.60	5/16/2026
	12/8/2016	37,917	67,083	\$ 2.74	12/8/2026
	5/10/2017	9,111	31,889	\$ 2.96	5/10/2027
John L. Gainer, Ph.D.	5/17/2012	22,649	0	\$ 2.10	5/17/2022
	10/9/2012	9,132	0	\$ 2.10	10/9/2022
	10/9/2012	18,264	0	\$ 2.10	10/9/2022
	10/5/2013	9,132	0	\$ 3.40	10/5/2023
	10/5/2013	18,264	0	\$ 6.10	10/5/2023
	12/1/2014	18,264	0	\$ 4.10	12/1/2024
	12/1/2014	10,958	0	\$ 4.10	12/1/2024
	10/30/2015	26,387	10,140	\$ 5.40	10/30/2025
	10/30/2015	15,834	6,082	\$ 5.40	10/30/2025
	5/16/2016	4,407	3,927	\$ 9.60	5/16/2026
	12/8/2016	12,278	21,722	\$ 2.74	12/8/2026
	5/10/2017	7,556	26,444	\$ 2.96	5/10/2027
Ben L. Shealy	5/17/2012	42,006	0	\$ 2.10	5/17/2022
ŭ	10/9/2012	20,090	0	\$ 2.10	10/9/2022
	10/5/2013	9,132	0	\$ 3.40	10/5/2023
	12/1/2014	10,958	0	\$ 4.10	12/1/2024
	10/30/2015	17,153	6,590	\$ 5.40	10/30/2025
	5/16/2016	4,731	4,228	\$ 9.60	5/16/2026
	12/8/2016	5,778	10,222	\$ 2.74	12/8/2026
	5/10/2017	5,133	17,967	\$ 2.96	5/10/2027

(1) The unvested shares underlying each option grant are scheduled to vest in equal parts each month over the 36 month period following the grant date (with vesting occurring on the applicable monthly anniversary, except for the option grants with grant dates in December 2016 and May 2017, which vest on the last day of each month).

401(k) Retirement Plan

We maintain the Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. 401(k) plan pursuant to which all eligible employees are entitled to make pre-tax and after-tax contributions of their compensation. In addition, the Company makes discretionary matching contributions at a rate of 100% for contributions up to 3% of the participant's eligible compensation and 50% for any additional contributions up to 5% of the participant's eligible compensation. The matching contributions received by our named executive officers in 2016 and 2017 are reported in the "All Other Compensation" column of the Summary Compensation Table above.

Post-Termination Severance and Change in Control Arrangements

As described under the heading "-Employment Agreements," we have entered into employment agreements with each of Messrs. Kalergis and Shealy and Dr. Gainer that provide for certain severance and change of control benefits, subject to the execution and non-revocation of a release of claims by the executive or his estate (as applicable). Under Mr. Kalergis' employment agreement, if his employment is terminated by us other than for "cause," death or "disability," or by Mr. Kalergis for "good reason" (as such terms are defined in the employment agreement), Mr. Kalergis will be entitled to any unpaid bonus earned in the year prior to the termination, a pro-rata portion of the bonus earned during the year of termination, continuation of base salary for 12 months, plus 12 months of COBRA premium reimbursement, provided that if such termination occurs within 60 days before or within 24 months following a "change of control" (as defined in the employment agreement), then Mr. Kalergis will be entitled to receive the same severance benefits as provided above, except that he will receive (a) a payment equal to two times the sum of his base salary and the higher of his target annual bonus opportunity and the bonus payment he received for the year immediately preceding the year in which the termination occurred instead of 12 months of base salary continuation, and (b) a payment equal to 36 times the monthly COBRA premium for him and his eligible dependents instead of 12 months of COBRA reimbursements (the payments in clauses (a) and (b) are paid in a lump sum in some cases and partly in a lump sum and partly in installments over 12 months in other cases). In addition, if Mr. Kalergis' employment is terminated by us without cause or by Mr. Kalergis for good reason, in either case, upon or within 24 months following a change of control, then Mr. Kalergis will be entitled to full vesting of all equity awards received by him from us (with any equity awards that are subject to the satisfaction of performance goals deemed earned at not less than target performance, and with any equity award that is in the form of a stock option or stock appreciation right to remain outstanding and exercisable for 24 months following the termination date (but in no event beyond the expiration date of the applicable option or stock appreciation right)).

Under the employment agreements for Mr. Shealy and Dr. Gainer, in the event that the executive's employment is terminated by us other than for "cause", death or "disability" or upon his resignation for "good reason" (as such terms are defined in the applicable employment agreement), the executive will be entitled to any unpaid bonus earned in the year prior to the termination, a pro-rata portion of the bonus earned during the year of termination, continuation of base salary for 9 months, plus 12 months of COBRA premium reimbursement, provided that if such termination occurs within 60 days before or within 24 months following a "change of control" (as defined in the applicable employment agreement), then the executive will be entitled to receive the same severance benefits as provided above, except that he will receive (a) a payment equal to 1.5 times the sum of his base salary and the higher of his target annual bonus opportunity and the bonus payment he received for the year immediately preceding the year in which the termination occurred instead of 9 months of COBRA reimbursements (the payments in clauses (a) and (b) are paid in a lump sum in some cases and in installments over 9 or 12 months in other cases). In addition, if the executive's employment is terminated by the Company without cause or by the executive for good reason, in either case, upon or within 24 months following a change of control, then the executive will be entitled to full vesting of all equity awards received by the executive from us (with any equity awards that are subject to the satisfaction of performance goals deemed earned at not less than target performance, and with any equity award that is in the form of a stock option or stock appreciation right to remain outstanding and exercisable for 24 months following the termination date (but in no event beyond the expiration date of the applicable option or stock appreciation right)).

Under the employment agreements for each of Messrs. Kalergis and Shealy and Dr. Gainer, in the event that the executive's employment is terminated due to his death or disability, he (or his estate) will be entitled to any unpaid bonus earned in the year prior to the termination, a pro-rata portion of the bonus earned during the year of termination, 12 months of COBRA premium reimbursement and accelerated vesting of (a) all equity awards received in payment of base salary or an annual bonus and (b) with respect to any other equity award, the greater of the portion of the unvested equity award that would have become vested within 12 months after the termination date had no termination occurred and the portion of the unvested equity award that is subject to accelerated vesting (if any) upon such termination under the applicable equity plan or award agreement (with performance goals deemed earned at not less than target performance, and with any equity award that is in the form of a stock option or stock appreciation right to remain outstanding and exercisable for 12 months following the termination date or, if longer, such period as provided under the applicable equity plan or award agreement (but in no event beyond the expiration date of the applicable option or stock appreciation right)).

Further, under the terms of the stock option agreements with our executives, upon a completion of a "change of control" (as defined in the Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc. 2015 Equity Incentive Plan), options held by our executives will become immediately vested and remain exercisable through their expiration date regardless of whether the holder remains in the employment or service of the Company. Alternatively, in connection with a change of control, the Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, cash out the options.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Overview of Director Compensation Program

As described in more detail under the heading "*Corporate Governance—Compensation Committee—Responsibilities*," the Board has delegated to the Compensation Committee the responsibility, among other things, to establish and lead a process for the determination of compensation payable to our non-employee directors. The Compensation Committee makes recommendations regarding compensation payable to our non-employee directors to the entire Board, which then makes final decisions regarding such compensation.

The principal elements of our director compensation program for 2017 included:

- cash compensation in the form of annual cash retainers; and
- long-term equity-based incentive compensation, in the form of stock options.

We do not compensate our employee directors, Mr. Kalergis and Dr. Gainer, separately for serving on the Board. In addition, pursuant to the option agreement between the Company and Mr. Blech described below, Mr. Blech also does not receive the long-term incentive compensation and annual retainers otherwise payable to our non-employee directors.

Cash Compensation

The cash compensation paid to the non-employee members of the Board for 2017 consisted of the following cash retainers.

	Annu	ual
Description	Cash Re	tainer
Board Member	\$	32,500
Lead Independent Director of the Board	\$	3,000
Audit Committee Chair	\$	15,000
Compensation Committee Chair	\$	10,000
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chair	\$	7,000
Audit Committee Member (other than Chair)	\$	6,000
Compensation Committee Member (other than Chair)	\$	5,000
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Member (other than Chair)	\$	3,000

The annual cash retainers are paid in accordance with the Company's standard payroll practices. The Compensation Committee has also reserved the right to make a portion of such payments in the form of equity rather than cash under certain conditions. During the fiscal year 2017, all retainers were paid in cash.

Long-Term Equity-Based Incentive Compensation

In addition to cash compensation, our non-employee directors receive long-term equity-based incentive compensation in the form of options to purchase shares of our common stock. Upon a non-employee director's initial appointment to the Board, he or she shall receive a stock option award valued at \$100,000 vesting in equal annual installments over three years. In addition, each non-employee director annually receives a stock option award valued at \$50,000 vesting in equal monthly installments over one year (previously, three years), unless otherwise provided by the Compensation Committee. All such options have a ten-year term and an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date.

See note 1 to the Director Compensation Table under the heading "—*Summary Director Compensation Table for Fiscal 2017*" for a summary of all options granted to our non-employee directors during the year ended December 31, 2017. See note 2 to the Director Compensation Table under the heading "—*Summary Director Compensation Table for Fiscal 2017*" for a summary of all options to purchase shares of our common stock held by our non-employee directors as of December 31, 2017.

Blech Option Agreement

In connection with his appointment to the Board on August 11, 2016 and in lieu of the compensation otherwise payable to our non-employee directors as described above, Mr. Blech was granted on August 31, 2016 a one-time stock option grant to purchase 204,907 shares of our common stock, which shares shall vest in equal quarterly installments over 10 years beginning September 30, 2016 (the "<u>Blech Option Grant</u>"). Mr. Blech generally has agreed not to sell any of the shares issuable upon exercise of the Blech Option Grant until August 11, 2021.

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into agreements with each of the members of the Board under which we are required to indemnify them against expenses, judgments, penalties, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred, including expenses of a derivative action, in connection with an actual or threatened proceeding if any of them may be made a party because he or she is or was one of our directors. We will be obligated to pay these amounts only if the director acted in good faith and in a manner that he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to our best interests. With respect to any criminal proceeding, we will be obligated to pay these amounts only if the director had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. The indemnification agreements also set forth procedures that will apply in the event of a claim for indemnification.

Summary Director Compensation Table for Fiscal 2017

The table below provides summary information concerning the compensation of each individual who served as a director of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2017, other than David G. Kalergis, our Chief Executive Officer, and John L. Gainer, Ph.D., our Chief Scientific Officer.

	-	es Earned r Paid in Cash	Av	Option vards (\$)(1)	All Other Compensation		
Name		(\$)		(2)	(\$)	Т	otal (\$)(3)
Isaac Blech	\$	0	\$	0	\$ 0	\$	0
Mark T. Giles	\$	58,000	\$	46,056	\$ 0	\$	104,056
Alan Levin	\$	58,500	\$	46,056	\$ 0	\$	104,556
Robert Adams	\$	56,000	\$	46,056	\$ 0	\$	102,056
Robert Ruffolo(3)	\$	29,000	\$	99,988	\$ 0	\$	128,988

⁽¹⁾ The amounts shown in this column reflect the grant date fair value of option awards granted during 2017, calculated in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 718 ("<u>ASC Topic 718</u>"), determined without regard to forfeitures. See the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model in the notes to the audited financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.

(3) As Dr. Ruffolo joined the Board in June 2017, his cash fees were pro-rated for fiscal year 2017. The option awards column consists of the initial option grant upon his appointment to the Board as described above under "*—Long-Term Equity-Based Incentive Compensation*."

⁽²⁾ As of December 31, 2017, our non-employee directors held stock options to acquire the following number of shares of our common stock: Mr. Blech, options to acquire 215,397 shares of our common stock; Mr. Giles, options to acquire 135,798 shares of our common stock; Mr. Levin, options to acquire 107,889 shares of our common stock; Mr. Adams, options to acquire 144,564 shares of our common stock; and Dr. Ruffolo, options to acquire 52,057 shares of our common stock.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Our Audit Committee is charged with the responsibility of reviewing and approving or ratifying all related person transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market and other applicable law, rules and regulations and any related policies and procedures adopted by or on behalf of the Company and then in effect.

Since January 1, 2017 there have been no transaction to which we have been a party in which (i) the amount involved in the transaction exceeds \$120,000 and (ii) any of our directors, executive officers or, to our knowledge, beneficial owners of more than 5% of our capital stock had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

OTHER MATTERS

Stockholder Proposals for 2019 Annual Meeting and Director Nominations

Under the rules of the SEC, stockholders wishing to have a proposal included in the Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2019 must submit the proposal so that the corporate Secretary of the Company receives it no later than 120 days prior to one year anniversary of the date hereof, which shall be December 31, 2018. The SEC rules set forth standards as to what stockholder proposals are required to be included in a proxy statement. Under the Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws, certain procedures must be followed for a stockholder to nominate persons as directors or to introduce a proposal at an annual meeting of stockholders. A stockholder wishing to make a nomination for election to the Board or to have a proposal presented at an annual meeting of stockholders must submit written notice of such nomination or proposal so that the corporate Secretary of the Company receives it not less than that date which is 120 days prior to the one year anniversary of the date the Company's proxy statement was released to stockholders in connection with the preceding year's annual meeting of stockholders, which shall be December 31, 2018; provided, however, that in the event that the Company did not hold an annual meeting of stockholders the preceding year or if the date of the annual meeting of stockholders is changed by more than 30 days from the date of the preceding year's annual meeting of stockholders, notice by the stockholder must be delivered not earlier than the close of business on the ninetieth (90th) day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the sixtieth (60th) day prior to such annual meeting or the tenth (10th) day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made. The Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws also set forth certain informational requirements for stockholders' nominations of directors and proposals.

Annual Report

We have sent or made available electronically to each of our stockholders a copy of our annual report on Form 10-K (without exhibits) for the year ended December 31, 2017. The exhibits to our Form 10-K are available by accessing the SEC's EDGAR filing database at <u>www.sec.gov</u>. We will furnish a copy of any exhibit to our Form 10-K upon receipt from any such person of a written request for such exhibits upon the payment of our reasonable expenses in furnishing the exhibits. This request should be sent to: Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc., 1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902, Attn: Stockholder Information.

Householding of Annual Meeting Materials

Some banks, brokers and other nominee record holders may be participating in the practice of "householding" proxy statements and annual reports. This means that only one copy of our proxy statement or annual report to stockholders may have been sent to multiple stockholders in each household. We will deliver promptly a separate copy of either document to any stockholder upon written or oral request to our Investor Relations Department, Diffusion Pharmaceuticals Inc., 1317 Carlton Avenue, Suite 200, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902, telephone: (434) 220-0718. Any stockholder who wants to receive separate copies of our proxy statement or annual report to stockholders in the future, or any stockholder who is receiving multiple copies and would like to receive only one copy per household, should contact the stockholder's bank, broker, or other nominee record holder, or the stockholder may contact us at the above address and phone number.

Cost and Method of Solicitation

In addition to solicitation by mail, our directors, officers, employees and agents may solicit proxies from our stockholders by personal interview, telephone, telegram or other electronic means. Arrangements also will be made with brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries who are record holders of our common stock for the forwarding of solicitation materials to the beneficial owners of our common stock. We will reimburse these brokers, custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for the reasonable out-of-pocket expenses they incur in connection with the forwarding of solicitation materials.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, please exercise your right to vote as soon as possible by completing, signing, dating and returning your proxy card or by using Internet or telephone voting as described on the proxy card or Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ David G. Kalergis

David G. Kalergis Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

April 30, 2018 Charlottesville, Virginia

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION (AS AMENDED) OF DIFFUSION PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

DIFFUSION PHARMACEUTICALS INC., a corporation incorporated and existing under and by virtue of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "<u>Corporation</u>") does hereby certify:

FIRST: That, at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the "Board of Directors") on March 14, 2018 a resolution was duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation (as amended) of the Corporation in the form set forth below (the "<u>Amendment</u>"), declaring said Amendment to be advisable and calling for consideration of said proposed Amendment by the stockholders of the Corporation.

"RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation (as amended) of the Corporation shall be amended by adding at the end of subsection A of Article IV thereof the following: ^{'1} "Effective upon the effective time of this Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware (the "Effective Time"), each ______ shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall, automatically and without the necessity of any further action, be changed, reclassified and combined into one (1) share of Common Stock (the "<u>Reverse Stock Split</u>"). No fractional shares shall be issued in connection with the Reverse Stock Split. Stockholders who otherwise would be entitled to receive fractional shares of Common Stock shall have that rounded up to one additional whole share. Each certificate that immediately prior to the Effective Time represented shares of Common Stock ("<u>Old Certificates</u>"), shall thereafter represent that number of shares of Common Stock into which the shares of Common Stock represented by the Old Certificate shall have been combined, subject to the elimination of fractional shares as described above."

SECOND: Thereafter, pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors, the proposed Amendment was approved by the stockholders of the Corporation at the annual meeting of stockholders on ______, 2018.

THIRD: That the Amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Sections 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation (as amended) to be executed by David G. Kalergis, its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, on this day of , 2018.

DIFFUSION PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

By:

Name: David G. Kalergis Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

¹ This amendment approves the reverse stock split of the Corporation's common stock, at a ratio in the range of two to fifteen-for-one. By approving this amendment, the stockholders of the Corporation would be deemed to approve any ratios within the range referred to above.

Pharmace DIFFUSION PHARMAC 1317 CAR TON AVEN CHARLOTESVILLE, V Investor Add Investor Add	WE SUITE 200 M 22002 dress Line 1 dress Line 2 dress Line 3 dress Line 4 dress Line 5 RE STREET	10111	1 OF 2 1 1	VOTE BY INTERNET - www.proxyvote.com Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and information. Vote by 11:59 P.M. ET on 06/13/2018. Hay you access the web site and follow the instructions to o an electronic voting instruction form. ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE PROXY M If you would like to reduce the costs incurred by our or you can consent to receiving all future proxy statemen- electronically via e-mail or the Internet. To sign up fo the instructions above to vote using the Internet and, agree to receive or access proxy materials electronical VOTE BY PHONE - 1-800-690-6903 Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting in on 06/13/2018. Have your proxy card in hand when you instructions. VOTE BY MAIL Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the provided or return it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge NY 11717.	e your proxy card in hand whe blain your records and to creat INTERIALS impany in mailing proxy materies to proxy cards and annual re- vision prompted, indicate that y in future years. istructions. Vote by 11:59 P.M is call and then follow the postage-paid envelope we ha	le rials, oorts ollow you . ET -	
NAME				CONTROL# → 0000000000	000000		
THE COMPANY N THE COMPANY N THE COMPANY N THE COMPANY N THE COMPANY N THE COMPANY N	NAME INC COMMO NAME INC CLASS NAME INC CLASS NAME INC CLASS NAME INC CLASS NAME INC CLASS NAME INC CLASS NAME INC 401 K	A B C D E		123,4 123,4 123,4 123,4 123,4 123,4 123,4	56,789,012.1234 56,789,012.1234 56,789,012.1234 56,789,012.1234 56,789,012.1234 56,789,012.1234 56,789,012.1234 56,789,012.1234	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	
OTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN E			IS VALID	PAGE 1 OF 2	KEEP THIS PORTION FO		
The Board of Directors recom the following:	nmends you vote FOR		Withhold For All All Except	To withhold authority to vote for an individual noninee(s), mark 'For Al Except' and write the number(s) of th nominee(s) on the line below.	v l	-	٦
the following:	nmends you vote FOR			Except" and write the number(s) of th	Y b		
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David G. Kalergis 	mmends you vote FOR 02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo		All Except	Except" and write the number(s) of the number(s) of the number(s) on the line below.	V 05 Mark T. Gile	 8	
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David G. Kalergis Alan Levin The Board of Directors recommendation 	02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo mmends you vote FOR propose	All 0 als 2, 3	All Except	Except and write the number(s) of the number(s) of the nominee(s) on the line below.	05 Mark T. Gile	gainst	-
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David G. Kalergis Alan Levin The Board of Directors recom To ratify the selection December 31, 2018. To approve an amendment 	02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo mmends you vote FOR proposi of KPMG LLP as our indepen to the Company's Certifici	All	All Except	ainer, Ph.D. 04 Robert Adams accounting firm for the year ending s amended, to effect a reverse stock	05 Mark T. Gile		Absta
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David G. Kalergis Alan Levin The Board of Directors recom To ratify the selection December 31, 2018. To approve an amendment split of the shares of t one-to-two and not great 	02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo mends you vote FOR propose of KPMG LLP as our indepen to the Company's Certific: the Company common stock, j	All als 2, 3 ndent req ate of Ir par value ith the d	All Except	accounting firm for the year ending	05 Mark T. Gile For A	gainst	0
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David G. Kalergis Alan Levin The Board of Directors recom To ratify the selection December 31, 2018. To approve an amendment split of the shares of t one-to-two and not great split to be determined b To approve, on an adviso 	02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo mmends you vote FOR proposi of KPMG LLP as our indepen to the Company's Certific the Company common stock, j ter than one-to-fifteen, w by our Board of Directors,	All als 2, 3 add data of In par value ith the of if at al n of our	All Except	ainer, Ph.D. 04 Robert Adams accounting firm for the year ending s amended, to effect a reverse stock are, at a ratio of not less than	05 Mark T. Gile For A	gainst	0
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David G. Kalergis David G. Kalergis Alan Levin The Board of Directors recom To ratify the selection December 31, 2018. To approve an amendment split to the shares of t one-to-two and not great split to be determined b To approve, on an adviso December 31, 2017, as di 	02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo mmends you vote FOR propose of KPMG LLP as our indepen to the Company's Certific the Company common stock, p ter than one-to-fifteen, w by our Board of Directors, any basis, the compensation isclosed in the accompanyin	All als 2, 3 ndent reg ate of In par value ith the g if at al n of our ng proxy	All Except	Except' and write the number(s) of the noninee(s) on the line below. ainer, Ph.D. 04 Robert Adams accounting firm for the year ending s amended, to effect a reverse stock are, at a ratio of not less than effective time of the reverse stock	05 Mark T. Gile For A	gainst	
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David G. Kalergis Alan Levin The Board of Directors recom To ratify the selection December 31, 2018. To approve an amendment split of the shares of t one-to-two and not great split to be determined b To approve, on an adviso December 31, 2017, as di 	02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo mmends you vote FOR propose of KPMG LLP as our indepen to the Company's Certific the Company common stock, p ter than one-to-fifteen, w by our Board of Directors, any basis, the compensation isclosed in the accompanyin	All als 2, 3 ndent reg ate of In par value ith the g if at al n of our ng proxy	All Except	Except" and write the number(s) of the nominee(s) on the line below. ainer, Ph.D. 04 Robert Adams accounting firm for the year ending s amended, to effect a reverse stock are, at a ratio of not less than effective time of the reverse stock e officers during the year ended	05 Mark T. Gile For A	gainst	
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David G. Kalergis Alan Levin The Board of Directors recom To ratify the selection December 31, 2018. To approve an amendment split of the shares of t one-to-two and not great split to be determined b To approve, on an adviso December 31, 2017, as di 	02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo mmends you vote FOR proposi of KPMG LLP as our indepen to the Company's Certific the Company common stack, 1 ter than one-to-fifteen, w by our Board of Directors, ory basis, the compensation isclosed in the accompanyin r business as may properly	All als 2, 3 ndent req ate of It par value rith the c if at al n of our ng proxy come bet	All Except	Except" and write the number(s) of the nominee(s) on the line below. ainer, Ph.D. 04 Robert Adams accounting firm for the year ending s amended, to effect a reverse stock are, at a ratio of not less than effective time of the reverse stock e officers during the year ended	05 Mark T. Gile For A	gainst	
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David G. Kalergis Alan Levin The Board of Directors recom To ratify the selection December 31, 2018. To approve an amendment split of the shares of t one-to-two and not great split to be determined b To approve, on an adviso December 31, 2017, as di NOTE: To transact such other Please indicate if you plan 	02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo mmends you vote FOR proposi of KPMG LLP as our indepen to the Company's Certific the Company common stack, 1 for than one-to-fifteen, w by our Board of Directors, ory basis, the compensation isclosed in the accompanyin r business as may properly to attend this mooting name(s) appear(s) hereon.	All als 2, 3 als 2, 3 adent reg ate of Ir par value if at al n of our ng proxy come bei Yes Ves When sign	All Except All Except O3 John L. G and 4: gistered public ncorporation, a e \$0.001 per sh exact ratio and 11. named executiv statement. fore the meetin No paing as attorn personally. Al	except" and write the number(s) of the nominee(s) on the line below. ainer, Ph.D. 04 Robert Adams accounting firm for the year ending s amended, to effect a reverse stock are, at a ratio of not less than effective time of the reverse stock e officers during the year ended g or any adjournment of the meeting.	05 Mark T. Gile For A D	gainst	
 the following: Election of Directors Nominees David C. Kalergis Alan Levin The Board of Directors recom To ratify the selection December 31, 2018. To approve an amendment split of the shares of t one-to-two and not great split to be determined b To approve, on an adviso December 31, 2017, as di NOTE: To transact such other Please indicate if you plan Please give full title as your please give full title as your 	02 Isaac Blech 07 Robert R. Ruffolo mmends you vote FOR proposi of KPMG LLP as our indepen to the Company's Certific the Company common stack, 1 for than one-to-fifteen, w by our Board of Directors, ory basis, the compensation isclosed in the accompanyin r business as may properly to attend this mooting name(s) appear(s) hereon.	All als 2, 3 als 2, 3 adent reg ate of Ir par value if at al n of our ng proxy come bei Yes Ves When sign	All Except All Except O3 John L. G and 4: gistered public ncorporation, a e \$0.001 per sh exact ratio and 11. named executiv statement. fore the meetin No paing as attorn personally. Al	except" and write the number(s) of the nominee(s) on the line below. ainer, Ph.D. 04 Robert Adams accounting firm for the year ending s amended, to effect a reverse stock are, at a ratio of not less than effective time of the reverse stock e officers during the year ended g or any adjournment of the meeting.	05 Mark T. Gile For A D	gainst O O SHA	

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting: The Annual Report and Notice and Proxy Statement are available at www.proxyvote.com

DIFFUSION PHARMACEUTICALS INC. Annual Meeting of Stockholders
June 14, 2018 at 9:00 AM, Eastern Time
This provide calleled by the Beard of Directory
This proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors
The stockholder(s) hereby appoint(s) David G. Kalergis and Ben L. Shealy, or either of them, as proxies, each with the power to appoint his substitute, and hereby authorizes them to represent and to vote, as designated on the reverse side of this ballot, all of the shares of common stock of DIFFUSION PHARMACEUTICALS INC, that the stockholder(s) is/are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of stockholder(s) to be held at 9:00 AM, Eastern Time on June 14, 2018, at our offices located at 1317 Carlton Aveune, Suite 200, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902, and any adjournment or postponement thereof.
This proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner directed herein. If no such direction is made, this proxy will be voted in accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendations.
Continued and to be signed on reverse side